
PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 5 June 2018 at 6.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton 

Agenda 

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Declarations of interest 
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the 
Code of Conduct. 

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or 
Council are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This 
requirement is not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without 
further explanation. 

3 Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)

4 Urgent Business 
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers 
should be dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 
100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

5 Schedule of items to be determined by the Committee (Pages 9 - 10)
 

6 17/01450/FUL - North Yorkshire Highways Depot Manor Vale Lane 
Kirkbymoorside (Pages 11 - 42)

7 17/01517/MREM - Land Adjacent to Auburn Cottages Langton Road 
Norton (Pages 43 - 50)

8 18/00036/MFUL - Ellis Patents High Street Rillington (Pages 51 - 80)

Ryedale House
Malton
North Yorkshire
YO17 7HH

Tel.   01653 600666
E-mail:
ellis.mortimer@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE

Please Contact: Ellis 
Mortimer/Karen Hood
Extension:       271   

Date : 25th May 2018

Public Document Pack



9 18/00202/MFUL - Beech Tree House South Holme Slingsby (Pages 81 - 
101)

10 18/00005/HOUSE - Moorlands High Street Cropton (Pages 102 - 113)

11 18/00363/HOUSE - North Wing Firby Hall Village Streets Firby (Pages 114 
- 128)

12 18/00314/LBC - North Wing Firby Hall Village Street Firby (Pages 129 - 
140)

13 18/00122/FUL - Royal Oak Hotel 131 Eastgate Pickering (Pages 141 - 183)

14 Any other business 

15 List of applications determined under delegated powers (Pages 184 - 
190)



Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 8 May 2018

Planning Committee

Held at Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH
Tuesday 8 May 2018

Present

Councillors  Joy Andrews, Paul Andrews, Cleary (Vice-Chairman), Farnell (Chairman), 
Goodrick, Hope, Elizabeth Shields, Wainwright (Substitute) and Windress

Substitutes: Councillor CR Wainwright

In Attendance

Gary Housden, Alan Goforth, Alan Hunter, Ellis Mortimer (Clerk), Lizzie Phippard (Clerk) 
and Jill Thompson

Minutes

177 Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Maud

178 Declarations of interest

Councillor Item
P J Andrews 10
Wainwright 7, 10
Shields 8

179 Minutes

Decision

That the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 10th April 2018 be 
approved and signed as a correct record.

[For 6 Against 0  Abstain 3]

180 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business. 

181 Schedule of items to be determined by the Committee

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 8 May 2018

The Head of Planning submitted a list (previously circulated) of the applications 
for planning permission with recommendation thereon.  

182 18/00004/FUL - Land West of the Cayley Arms Weasdale to Partings Farm 
Allerston

18/0004/FUL - Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of sheep and 
formation of new access track

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subjection to conditions as recommended

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

183 17/01238/MFUL - Land at Riccal Drive Helmsley

17/01238/MFUL - Erection of 7no. four bedroom dwellings, 33no. three 
bedroom dwellings and 6no. two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, 
parking, amenity areas, landscaping,  bridge across Spittle Beck, associated 
infrastructure, public open space and formation of vehicular access

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended and Section 
106 Agreement in relation to on and off-site affordable housing provision.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Wainwright 
declared a personal, non-pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

184 17/01517/MREM - Land Adjacent to Auburn Cottages Langton Road 
Norton

17/01517/MREM - Erection of 20no. four bedroom dwellings, 36no. three 
bedroom dwellings and 23no. two bedroom dwellings with associated 
infrastructure and landscaping (outline approval 15/00098/MOUT as allowed on 
appeal 22.07.2016 refers)

Decision

Page 4



Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 8 May 2018

DEFERRED 

[For 6 Against 2 Abstain 1]

A previous vote for deferral for a site inspection was rejected.

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Mrs Shields 
declared a personal, non-pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

185 18/00094/MFUL - The Grange Marton Road Sinnington

18/00094/MFUL - Erection of an agricultural building to house a milking parlour

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED- Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

186 18/00243/MREM - Land at Edenhouse Road Old Malton

18/00243/MREM - Erection of Unit A - Industrial unit subdivided into 4no.units 
and Unit B - Industrial unit subdivided into 2no. units: Phase 1 of reserved 
matters (outline approval 14/00426/MOUTE dated 24.03.2015 refers as 
amended)

Decision 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 1]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Wainwright and 
P J Andrews declared a personal, non-pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

187 17/01534/FUL - South View and Corner Cottage Forkers Lane Settrington

17/01534/FUL - Formation of vehicular access onto Chapel Road to serve 
South View Plot 1 with Corner Cottage Plot 2 solely to use the approved access 
onto Forkers Lane

Decision

Page 5



Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 8 May 2018

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

188 18/00080/FUL - The Old Vicarage Hogg Lane North Grimston Malton

18/00080/FUL - Erection of two storey extension to north elevation including 
single storey porch and formation of terrace with steps down to sunken garden 
with east and west boundary walls, erection of replacement entrance canopy 
and replacement of 5no. windows to south elevation, replacement of 2no. 
windows to east elevation and erection of two storey bay window, replacement 
of 2no. windows and formation of terrace with steps up to lawns to west 
elevation following demolition of existing rear extensions, together with erection 
of a one bedroom self-contained guest cottage and erection of a detached 
garage/car port with loggia to south elevation and office/store room above 
following demolition of existing outbuildings, together with alterations to existing 
vehicular access.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

189 18/00120/FUL - Harome Methodist Church Chapel Lane Harome

18/00120/FUL - Change of use and alteration of former Methodist chapel, 
attached school room and detached outbuilding to form a 4 bedroom dwelling, 
detached 2 bay garage and associated amenity space.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

190 18/00150/FUL - Church Farm Westgate Rillington

18/00150/FUL - Change of use and alteration of agricultural buildings to form 
1no. 4 bedroom and 2no. 3 bedroom detached dwellings together with change 
of use, alteration and part demolition of existing outbuilding, steel framed barn 

Page 6



Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 8 May 2018

and 2no. garage blocks to form domestic amenity and parking spaces and 
alterations to existing vehicular accesses.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

191 18/00174/HOUSE - Westfield Cottage Chapel Lane Westow

18/00174/HOUSE - Erection of a detached double garage and 2.10m high 
boundary fence.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

192 18/00216/HOUSE - 11 Meadow Road Pickering

18/00216/HOUSE - Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to 
rear elevation following demolition of existing conservatory and widening of 
existing garage (resubmission of expired approval 12/00313/HOUSE dated 
27.06.2012)

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

193 Proposed Revisions to NPPF and Developer Contributions

Decision

That a response to the consultation is made in line with the report and to also 
include:

Page 7



Planning Committee 6 Tuesday 8 May 2018

- Concerns in relation to proposed minerals policies, reflecting this Council’s 
position on energy from unconventional hydrocarbons and,

- Concern that the proposed national policy does not include an explicit 
reference to the need to secure bungalow accommodation in line with the 
recent Select Committee report.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

194 Any other Business

There was no urgent business.

195 List of applications determined under delegated powers

The Head of Planning submitted for information (previously circulated) a list 
which gave details of the applications determined by the Head of Planning in 
accordance with the scheme of delegated decision.

196 Appeals

Members were advised of the following appeal decisions:

APP/Y2736/D/18/3194076 – Lyndhurst Main Street Appleton le Street

Meeting closed 20:45

Page 8



05/06/18

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

17/01450/FUL

Erection of 6no. three bedroom terraced dwellings along with parking areas 

and shared amenity space

6

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: North Yorkshire Highways Depot  Manor Vale Lane Kirkbymoorside 

YO62 6EG

17/01517/MREM

Erection of 20no. four bedroom dwellings, 36no. three bedroom dwellings 

and 23no. two bedroom dwellings with associated infrastructure and 

landscaping (outline approval 15/00098/MOUT as allowed on appeal 

22.07.2016 refers)

7

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land Adjacent To Auburn Cottages Langton Road Norton Malton North 

Yorkshire 

18/00036/MFUL

Erection of an industrial unit (Use Class B2 and B8) and covered area over 

existing service road to include installation of 408no. photovoltaic panels to 

the proposed roof slopes together with relocation of existing oil tank, 

formation of an additional 13no. car parking spaces and replanting of 

existing landscape screening.

8

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Ellis Patents  High Street Rillington Malton YO17 8LA

18/00202/MFUL

Erection of an agricultural poultry rearing building with feed bins and area 

of hardstanding following the demolition of existing agricultural buildings.

9

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Beech Tree House  South Holme Slingsby Malton YO62 4BA

18/00005/HOUSE

Erection of a detached outbuilding following demolition of existing Dutch 

barn and chicken hut

10

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Moorlands  High Street Cropton Pickering YO18 8HH

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



05/06/18

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

18/00363/HOUSE

Demolition of existing boundary wall, fence and access gates including gate 

posts and erection of replacement stone walling, posts and painted timber 

pedestrian and vehicular gates (revised details to refusal 17/01437/HOUSE 

dated 18.01.2018)

11

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: North Wing Firby Hall Village Streets Firby Malton North Yorkshire YO60 

7LH

18/00314/LBC

Demolition of existing boundary wall, fence and access gates including gate 

posts and erection of replacement stone walling, posts and painted timber 

pedestrian and vehicular gates (revised details to refusal 17/01266/LBC 

dated 14.12.2017)

12

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: North Wing Firby Hall  Village Streets Firby Malton YO60 7LH

18/00122/FUL

Change of use, alteration and extension of former hotel to form a terrace of 

3no. 2 bedroom dwellings, erection of 3no. garden sheds/cycle stores and 

formation of 4no. parking spaces with turning area following demolition of 

existing side and rear extensions, together with erection of a detached 4 

bedroom dwelling, attached 2 bay garage and replacement of existing front 

boundary treatments with 1.2m high metal fence and pedestrian gate.

13

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Royal Oak Hotel  131 Eastgate Pickering YO18 7DW

Page 10



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING

Item Number: 6
Application No: 17/01450/FUL
Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council
Appn. Type: Full Application
Applicant: Thomas Crown Associates
Proposal: Erection of 6no. three bedroom terraced dwellings along with parking areas 

and shared amenity space
Location: North Yorkshire Highways Depot Manor Vale Lane Kirkbymoorside YO62 

6EG

Registration Date: 30 November 2017 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 25 January 2018
Case Officer: Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276

CONSULTATIONS:

Housing Services Off-site Affordable housing condition requested
Historic England On the basis of the information available to date, we 

do not wish to offer any comments. We suggest that 
you seek the views of your specialist conservation and 
archaeological advisers, as relevant.

Countryside Officer Recommend conditions
Archaeology Section I have no objection to the proposal and have no further 

comments make.
Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions 
North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service No objections
Sustainable Places Team (Environment-Agency Yorkshire Area) No further comments
Yorkshire Water Land Use Planning Recommend condition 
Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards  
Environmental Health Officer Noise response - concerns
Parish Council Comments made but support in principle
Lead Local Flood Authority Recommend conditions

Neighbour responses: Liz And Paul Banks, Mr Keith Stevenson, Mr John 
Barrett, Mr Michael Gray, Mr And Mrs M. I. Dowson, Ms 
Helen Beaumont, , Mr Brian Bancroft, David And Judith 
Turnball, Miss Polly A Baldwin, Mrs Elizabeth Banks, 
Mr Paul Birchall, Ravenswick Estate, Kirkbymoreside 
Town Brass Band (Mr John Wright), Mrs Ann Gray, 

Overall Expiry Date:      15 March 2018

INTRODUCTION:

This application was deferred from the March 2018 Planning Committee at the applicant's request in 
order to try and address the three recommended reasons for refusal. These were:

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

1. The proposed residential accommodation is located in very close proximity to the 
Kirkbymoorside Band Hall, (which has planning permission for an extension), and is likely to 
create complaints regarding the noise and operations of the band hall. The Band Hall is an 
important community facility and a use protected in accordance with Policy SP11 of the Local 
Plan Strategy. Noise and activities from the Band Room will be likely to have an adverse 
effect upon the amenity of occupiers of the proposed residential accommodation which would 
be likely to generate complaints regarding the Bands' operations. The proposed development 
is thereby contrary to the requirements of Policies SP11 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 
Plan Strategy.

2. The proposed residential development (including the outdoor amenity area) by virtue of its 
close proximity to the outer valley side, and the inter-relationship with the Band Hall is not 
considered to ensure a satisfactory level of residential amenities for occupiers of the proposed 
dwellings and be contrary to the requirements of Policies SP4 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - 
Local Plan Strategy.

3. It has not been demonstrated that the proposed development has met the requirements of the 
Exception Test as set out within para 102 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 
and Policy SP17 of the Local Plan Strategy.

The previous Committee Report and Update Report has been consolidated within the report below. 
Members are asked to refer to their March 2018 agendas for details of this application, attached to this 
report is relevant information received after the March 2018 meeting.

SITE:

This site is located towards the northern end of Kirkbymoorside, and to the north of Manor Vale Lane.  
Manor Vale Lane runs through the application site and becomes a single track road which provides 
vehicular access to the Kirkbymoorside Golf Club (located further north of the application site).

The application site was previously used as a Highway Depot for North Yorkshire County Council.  
The site also comprises a former quarry.  Various buildings and structures occupy the eastern part of the 
site which lies beneath a cliff face.  These buildings consist of offices, stores and garaging, whilst to the 
north of the buildings is a hard-surfaced area.  At present that site is derelict, and with the exception of 
the roadway, it has security fencing around its inner sides.

To the west of the application site, are two community halls, one of which is used as a Scout Hut and the 
second of which is a Band Hall. The Band Hall has been granted planning permission to extend onto the 
site occupied by the Scout Hut to create a Concert Hall. Residential development is located on top of the 
cliff to the western and eastern sides of the application site.  To the south, there are dwellings of varying 
styles located on Manor Vale Lane.  These properties comprise the approach to the site from the town.

Part of the site lies immediately within the development limit for the town but to the north of the 
Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area.  The land immediately to the north is within the Area of High 
Landscape Value (Fringe of the North York Moors), and contains a designated Site of Importance for 
Nature Conservation, along with Ancient Woodland. A small area of the site is located outside of the 
development limits of the Town, this area is proposed to be used as communal garden area.

An area to the north-east and immediately adjacent but outside the application site is designated as an 
Scheduled Ancient Monument (Neville Castle).

PROPOSAL:

The proposal is a Full application for 6no. 3 bed dwellings, arranged as a terrace dwellings. All of the 
dwellings are in the form of frontage development which runs along the eastern side of the roadway, 
with a central access to the Golf Club running through the application site. The communal area of 

Page 12



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

garden is to be located to the northern side of the proposed dwellings, and measures approximately 10m 
by 12m.

The building comprising the 6no. terraced dwellings in total will measure 41.2m in width and 7.8m in 
depth, the proposed dwellings measure 4.5m to the eaves and 8m to the ridge height. The agent has 
confirmed the dwellings are proposed to be constructed from 100mm bed random coursed stone under a 
clay pantile roof with timber windows and doors.  Parking areas are proposed to the south and north of 
the proposed dwellings with permeable paving.

The application is accompanied by the following reports:

 Planning Statement;
 Landscape and Visual Appraisal;
 Noise Assessment; 
 Tree Survey;
 Asbestos Demolition Survey Report;
 Archaeology assessment;
 Contaminated Land Report - Phase 2 report;
 Drainage details;
 Flood Risk Assessment;
 Design & Access Statement; and 
 Ecology surveys.  

These reports are able to be viewed on the Council's website.

HISTORY:

Recent planning history includes:

2017: Planning application refused for the erection of 6 dwellings. Appeal lodged but subsequently 
withdrawn.

2015: Planning application for residential development withdrawn.

2014: Planning application for B1 and B8 use- dismissed on appeal.

2014: Change of use of office to a dwelling refused - dismissed on appeal.

2014: Two planning applications for residential development withdrawn.

2013: Demolition Consent granted to demolish the redundant buildings on the site.

2008: Planning permission refused for residential development - dismissed on appeal.  (Note: This was 
a larger site than is currently proposed)

POLICY:

National Policy 

National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance 2014 (NPPG)

Local Plan Strategy

Page 13



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing
Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing
Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing
Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services
Policy SP12 - Heritage
Policy SP13 - Landscapes
Policy SP14 - Biodiversity
Policy SP16 - Design
Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources
Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues
Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy

APPRAISAL:

The main considerations in relation to this application are:-

 The principle of the proposed residential development;
 Flood Risk;
 The siting, scale and design of the proposed scheme;
 Whether the proposed dwellings will have a satisfactory level of residential amenity; 
 The impact of the proposed development upon surrounding properties;
 Heritage impacts;
 Drainage;
 Archaeology;
 Highway safety;
 Affordable Housing;
 Contaminated land and ground stability;
 Ecology and the impact of the proposal upon protected species and the Manor Vale SINC;
 Tree and Landscape Impact;
 Other Issues; and
 CIL.

A previous application for 6 dwellings, comprising a pair of 3 terraced dwellings, was refused planning 
permission last year, by Planning Committee. The reasons for refusal related to absence of a flood risk 
Sequential Test and possibility of increased flood risk to other properties; the impact of the 
development upon the Band Hall; and the limited amenity for the occupiers of the dwellings as a 
consequence of the close proximity of the development to the outer sides of the quarry and the Band 
Hall. This current planning application was originally submitted alongside an appeal against the earlier 
decision of Planning Committee, that appeal has subsequently been withdrawn.

This application was been submitted with new information; a new Noise Assessment; a Drainage Site 
Plan; Surface Water Drainage Calculations; Updated Flood Risk Assessment and Updated Design and 
Access Statement. Revised Plans have also been submitted showing a single building block comprising 
6 terraced dwellings. 

Following discussions with the agent, the current planning application has been further amended; to be 
a FULL application; an additional area of communal amenity space for the 6 dwellings has been 
proposed to the northern side of the dwellings, a revised internal layout is proposed with all habitable 
rooms on the rear elevation; additional drainage information; a schedule of external materials; and a 
Sequential Test.  

Page 14



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

The principle of the proposed development

The proposed 6 no. dwellings are located within the development limits of Kirkbymoorside. In 
accordance with Policy SP2 of the Local Plan Strategy, it is considered that the development of the 
application site within development limits can be regarded as 'infill' development and acceptable in 
principle.

Flood risk

The site is located within Flood Zone 1, in terms of its risk of flooding from coastal and river flooding. 
The site was originally within Flood Zone 3 of the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, however that was 
subsequently amended to Flood Zone 1, being the lowest risk of Flooding. That was because surface 
water flooding and coastal and river flooding were separated.  A separate Surface Water Flood Map 
was developed and the advice from the Environment Agency was to consider all the maps and 
designated areas together. The Environment Agency Surface Water Flood Map identifies the 
application site within an area at high risk of flooding from surface water. 

It is understood the surface water flows from higher land to the north, and at times of heavy rainfall 
flows through the application site and pools to the south of the application site. Photographs and videos 
of a serious flood event involving the flooding of the dwelling immediately to the south have been 
submitted in response to an earlier application for residential development on this site. There is strong 
concern locally regarding the flooding of this area. The agent has submitted photographs of the previous 
flood event, and these are appended to this report for Members information.

Para. 101 of NPPF states:

'The aim of the Sequential Test is to steer new development to areas with the lowest probability of 
flooding. Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available sites 
appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower probability of flooding. The Strategic 
Flood Risk Assessment will provide the basis for applying this test. A sequential approach should be 
used in areas known to be at risk from any form of flooding.'

and para. 103 of NPPF states:

'When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure flood risk is not 
increased elsewhere and only consider development appropriate in areas at risk of flooding where, 
informed by a site-specific flood risk assessment following the Sequential Test, and if required the 
Exception Test, it can be demonstrated that:
- within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest flood risk unless there 
are overriding reasons to prefer a different location; and
- development is appropriately flood resilient and resistant, including safe access and escape routes 
where required, and that any residual risk can be safely managed, including by emergency planning; 
and it gives priority to the use of sustainable drainage systems.'

Para. 101 and para. 103 of NPPF and Policy SP17 of the Local Plan do not exclude surface water flood 
risk from the sequential test. In this case, the site does flood and surface water comes from the higher 
land to the north down through the steps at Manor Vale Wood (eastern side) and across the application 
site. The water is then known to pool to the south of the site in Manor Vale.  A map provided to the 
Local Planning Authority in 2011 annotated the whole site as flooding at that time. The photographs 
annotated to this report clearly show the access road that runs through the application site to flood. 
There has also been a Court decision that confirms even where part of the site is at risk of flooding the 
entire proposal has to be sequentially tested.

After initially disputing that it is required, the agent has submitted a Sequential Test. The Test is 
whether the development, in this case 6 terraced dwellings in a similar form to that submitted can be 
located on any other sites in Kirkbymoorside, which are at a lesser risk of flooding. NPPG requires a 

Page 15



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

pragmatic approach to this test and to take account of the type of development proposed. The relatively 
high density and urban form of development is considered to be more appropriate in a built- up area as 
opposed to a Greenfield location. The Sequential Test has, however, analysed sites in and around 
Kirkbymoorside to establish if there are any suitable and available sites for this type of development. 
The Test has also been discussed in detail internally with colleagues working on the recently submitted 
Sites Document. On the basis that there are no other suitable or available sites for the type and form of 
development proposed, it is considered that the Sequential Test has been met, in this case. 

With the Sequential Test met, it is then appropriate to consider the Exception Test for this proposed use. 
Turning to the first part of the Exception Test, as outlined above in Para 103 of NPPF, it is noted that the 
buildings on site are in a poor state of repair and this is also a brownfield site that would benefit from 
being developed. Officers regularly receive complaints about the condition and appearance of this site. 
The opportunity to provide an appropriate redevelopment of this Brownfield site that is located in a 
sustainable location is considered to be a significant material planning consideration.

Regarding the second stage of the Exception Test, the mitigation proposed is to raise finished floor 
levels above current ground levels by 0.45m. Information has been submitted that demonstrates to the 
satisfaction of the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) that the development of the site is not likely to 
increase the risk of flooding elsewhere by virtue of the surrounding ground levels. The LLFA are also 
content that a route away from the site in the event of a flood event is not required. Again this is because 
of the topography of the site. In view of the advice from the LLFA and the above assessment it is 
considered that the Exception Test has been met on this site. Subject to the detailed conditions 
recommended by the LLFA there are no flood risk objections to the proposals.

The siting, scale and design and materials of the proposed development

The 2008 Outline application that was dismissed on Appeal, proposed residential development along 
the eastern part of the site and opposite the Band Hall.  The Inspector in 2008 stated:

'The appellant argues that the layout would 'break up' the development although in my view its 
suburban estate style layout would appear alien in its disused quarry setting, neither reflecting its 
industrial heritage nor enhancing its landscape setting.'

'.. I conclude that the proposal would be harmful to the character and appearance of the site, including 
both parts within Kirkbymoorside's defined development limits and parts of it within Kirkbymoorside's 
development limits and the parts within the AHLV'

Policy SP16 of the adopted Local Plan Strategy requires:

'Development proposals will be expected to create high quality durable places that are accessible, well 
integrated with their surroundings and which:

 Reinforce local distinctiveness
 Provide a well-connected public realm which is accessible and usable by all, safe and easily 

navigated
 Protect amenity and promote well-being. To reinforce local distinctiveness, the location, 

siting, form, layout, scale and detailed design of new development should respect the context 
provided by its surroundings including:

 Topography and landform that shape the form and structure of settlements in the landscape
 The structure of towns and villages formed by street patterns, routes, public spaces, rivers 

and becks. The medieval street patterns and historic cores of Malton, Pickering, 
Kirkbymoorside and Helmsley are of particular significance and medieval two row villages 
with back lanes are typical in Ryedale

 The grain of the settlements, influenced by street blocks, plot sizes, the orientation of 
buildings, boundaries, spaces between buildings and the density, size and scale of buildings

Page 16



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

 The character and appearance of open space and green spaces including existing Visually 
Important Undeveloped Areas (VIUAs) or further VIUAs which may be designated in the 
Local Plan Sites Document or in a Neighbourhood Plan. Development proposals on land 
designated as a VIUA will only be permitted where the benefits of the development proposed 
significantly outweigh the loss or damage to the character of the settlement

 Views, vistas and skylines that are provided and framed by the above and/or influenced by the 
position of key historic or landmark buildings and structures

 The type, texture and colour of materials, quality and type of building techniques and 
elements of architectural detail'

In this case, 6 terraced properties are proposed, with parking areas to the northern and southern sides. 
The scheme is now a FULL application and includes elevations to be considered. The proposed 
dwelling are designed as 2 storey properties with 2 no. dormer windows on the front of each property 
and accommodation in the loft areas. There is some concern at the number of dormer windows, and 
consequent number of down pipes required on the front elevation. However, this form of development 
is considered to be acceptable in this location and to respect the traditional form of development in the 
wider area. It is considered that this form of development is more appropriate than detached or suburban 
type housing. 

On the whole it is considered that the design and appearance of the development is acceptable.  As the 
site relates to 6 dwellings, there are considered to be sufficient views retained elsewhere of the outer 
valley sides. It is considered, on balance, that the development is acceptable and to meet the 
requirement of Policy SP16 and Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy.

Whether the proposed development will have a satisfactory level of residential amenity

Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy states:

'New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future 
occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community by virtue 
of its design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity can include, 
for example, noise, dust, odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an overbearing 
presence.

Developers will be expected to apply the highest standards outlined in the World Health Organisation, 
British Standards and wider international and national standards relating to noise.'

The following issues are considered to be particularly relevant in this case:

 The potential for noise and disturbance from the adjacent Band Hall

 The position of the cliff faces on the western and eastern sides measuring up to 10m above the 
site level proposed for the houses

(i) Noise and the Band Hall implications

Kirkbymoorside Band Hall is located opposite the site, together with an existing Scout Hut. Planning 
permission (15/00644/FUL) was granted last year for an extension of the band hall onto the site of the 
Scout Hut to create a Concert Hall. The Band Hall is an important community and recreational facility 
that is afforded protection within the Local Plan Strategy.

Policy SP11 of the Local Plan Strategy states:

'Existing local retail, community, cultural, leisure and recreational services and facilities that contribute 
to the vitality of the towns and villages and the well-being of local communities will be protected from 
loss/redevelopment unless it can be demonstrated that:

Page 17



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

-there is no longer a need for the facility or suitable and accessible alternatives exist, or
-that it is no longer economically viable to provide the facility, or
-Proposals involving replacement facilities provide an equivalent or greater benefit to the community 
and can be delivered with minimum disruption to provision'

There is considered to be a significant an issue with the co-existence of housing and the Band Hall. 
Particularly the degree of noise that future occupiers will be subject to, and the likelihood that this will 
create complaints about the operations of the Band Hall. As noted above in Policy SP20, the Local 
Planning Authority requires the highest standards in relation to noise for new residential developments. 

On the earlier Appeal Decision, the Inspector stated:

'The appellant argues that the affected houses could be designed with measures to protect their 
occupants from the noise, although I am not persuaded that this is practical: even if double or triple 
glazing in the houses were to be effective in blocking out the music, the residents would be unable to 
have their windows open in warm weather and, in any case, they would not be able to enjoy their 
gardens on summer evenings without the disturbance of the band.'

A new Noise Assessment has been submitted with this application that has sought to engage with the 
Band Hall representatives. The Noise Assessment has demonstrated that the rear elevations of the 
proposed dwelling even with windows open could meet the relevant noise standards that the Council 
applies. The scheme has been re-designed with all habitable rooms located on the rear elevations. The 
Environmental Specialist has been consulted and has stated:

'I still have concerns with regard to noise disturbance to these dwellings. Whilst I acknowledge the 
improved internal layout in relation to noise disturbance from the band room during band practice, 
section 1:3 of the "YES" noise assessment executive summary states:

"If windows to both hall and residential properties were open whilst band practice is taking place the 
noise levels in the proposed dwellings would not be acceptable and would result in a significant adverse 
effect". 

This development, therefore does not meet the highest standards required by Ryedale District Council 
that internal noise levels should be in line with the World Health Organisation (WHO) guidelines with 
partially open windows. The occupants will have no jurisdiction over whether the band room will have 
their windows open or closed and therefore cannot control the levels from the band room itself.

The plans show on the first floor elevation a study, I have reservations that should this be used as a 
fourth bedroom then noise levels would result in a significant adverse effect. I still have concerns to the 
outside courtyard area, this could not be used as an amenity to the dwelling as noise levels to this area 
would be totally unacceptable.'

There has also been an objection from the Band Hall representatives and from other third party 
objectors regarding the potential implications for the Band Hall. There is concern that the proposal 
could create complaints regarding nuisance which could curtail the Band's Operations. The objections 
raised consider the Noise Assessment to be much better than the previous Assessment but nonetheless 
still consider it to be partially inadequate. The Band Hall representatives are also keen to emphasise that 
they practice outside and with their doors open during warmer months. The Band Hall is 14.5 metres 
away at its closest the proposed dwellings.

The applicant's Noise consultant has responded with the following:

'In the YES Consultancy's noise report (page 23) we advise that when windows to the band hall are 
opened, then sound levels inside the rooms to the front facades of the property are predicted to increase 
such that windows to the rooms would need to be closed in order to ensure compliance with the design 

Page 18



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

standards of BS8233 and the WHO guidelines, with suitable acoustically treated ventilation provided.  
Also if band hall windows were closed then internal levels in the proposed properties would be well 
below the World Health Organisation and BS8233:2014 internal criteria levels. 

As a result I do not think it would be necessary for any mitigation to be provided in terms of sound 
insulation of the band hall building but it may be worth considering provision of mechanical 
ventilation/air conditioning for the band hall such that windows to the hall could remain closed and 
thus reduce noise breakout.

Within the objection from the brass band they make a number expressions of concern regarding 
numbers of band practices, times of practices, loudness of band practices (with senior bands considered 
to be louder). In addition they state that noise from the band would increase when band practice takes 
place outside during the summer months, this was not something which was mentioned during my long 
discussions with the band.'

Again, in my view, the provision of any artificial ventilation/air conditioning would help control these 
aspects too. Obviously noise levels from outside practice wouldn't be affected by any changes to the 
building but I am not 100% sure that this would be classified as reasonable if they have a perfectly 
adequate indoor space for practicing.'

Members will appreciate in the previous Update Report to committee that the Band Hall 
Representatives dismissed the applicant's offer to triple glaze their windows and install mechanical 
ventilation. That is a separate matter to this planning application. Officers consider that the application 
is finely balanced. With the layout of the proposed dwellings together with the current Noise 
Assessment it appears difficult to sustain an objection to the proposal based on the proximity of the 
Band Hall. However, Officers retain reservations about the co-location of the two uses. The Noise 
Assessment and layout of the proposed dwellings with habitable rooms on the rear elevation appears to 
demonstrate a satisfactory solution.

Regarding the comments of the Environmental Specialists, it is correct that the study could be used as a 
bedroom, and that the Local Planning Authority could not control this aspect. To try and do so, is 
considered to be unenforceable and unreasonable. It is to an extent, the future occupier's choice as to 
how they use rooms in their homes. Within the planning system Officers have ensured that 3 bedrooms 
for each property can achieve the required noise standards.  Regarding the proposed shared amenity 
area, the agent considers acoustic fencing around this area to be unsightly and the aim was that this was 
an open area. The communal area is not joined to the individual domestic curtilages, with each of the 6 
proposed dwellings having their own private domestic curtilages that meets the relevant noise standard. 
It is therefore considered that the noise requirements in respect of the shared communal area can be 
considered more flexibly. 

It is unfortunate that no agreement has been achieved between the Band Hall representatives and the 
applicant. Based on the current proposals it is considered that the scheme has afforded sufficient 
protection to the Band Hall in terms of its design and layout and on balance, the proposal is not 
considered to be contrary to Policy SP11 and SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy. The re-development of 
this Brownfield site and other associated planning benefits with its development need to be considered 
in the planning balance, before a recommendation is made.

(ii) Proximity to the eastern outer side

In terms of the proximity to the outer sides of the valley. The proposed dwellings have limited rear 
gardens and they are in close proximity to the outer cliff sides. Officers maintain concern that this 
arrangement will not provide a satisfactory level of amenity for the proposed occupiers. The cliff side 
has the potential to reduce daylight and sun light and creating an over-dominating sense of enclosure to 
the rear of the proposed properties. 

It is noted that the Inspector in the earlier decision stated the following:

Page 19



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

'The majority of the dwellings would be located in close proximity to the site's east quarry face. Given 
the height of the cliff and the dense line of trees on top of it, I envisage that the outlook from, and light 
in, the rear facing rooms of most of the properties would be so restricted as to provide unacceptable 
living conditions for the residents of the dwellings. I appreciate that the trees on the cliff top are 
deciduous, although their branches appear to be dense and I envisage that, together with the cliff face 
itself, they would restrict light to the properties even when not in leaf. I recognise that the positioning of 
windows does not form part of this outline application. However, given the shape of the properties and 
the presence of adjacent dwellings/garages to the side elevations of most of the houses (as shown on the 
layout plan), it appears to me that, despite them facing south west, it would not be possible to design the 
majority of the proposed properties such that all their main rooms would receive adequate light and 
provide a satisfactory outlook' 

It appears the very same issues remains with the current scheme to those previously addressed by the 
Inspector. In this case, the application is now a FULL application with elevations and window positions 
shown. Furthermore, the majority of the trees on the upper sides to the east have now been removed. 
This will afford more light to the rear elevations of the proposed dwellings than when the Inspector 
assessed the earlier outline application in 2008. The application site is also much reduced to that 
considered by the Inspector previously. It is considered that there will not be a particularly good outlook 
from these properties. In mitigation, the agent has amended the layout pan to show a shared amenity 
area to the north of the dwellings (as discussed above), thereby increasing the level of general amenity 
space available to the 6 properties.  Officers still have reservations about this arrangement so close to 
the eastern side of the former quarry. However, this is not considered to be a strong reason for refusal 
and again needs to be weighed in the planning balance on this scheme. 

It is noted that in the report below, the Council's Specialist requires the remaining trees on the eastern 
side to be appropriately managed, and a condition is recommended. It is considered that such a 
condition should also address the heights of the retained trees to maintain adequate amenity for the 
occupiers of the proposed dwellings.

The impact of the proposed development upon the amenity of the adjoining neighbours

The proposed residential properties themselves are not considered likely to be prejudicial to the 
amenities of surrounding properties, by virtue of the separation distances to those properties on Manor 
Vale and by virtue of the levels changes to those properties on higher land to the eastern and western 
sides of the site.

Impact upon the setting of Heritage assets

Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area boundary lies to the south of the application site. The Scheduled 
Ancient Monument of the former Neville Castle is to the north eastern side. There are also 7 grade 2 
listed buildings in the locality. High Hall and Low Hall to the eastern and south eastern side (and 
accessed via Castlegate) and No. 10,12,14,18, and 20 Dale End. S66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires the Local Planning Authority to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses. S72 of the Act also requires the Local Planning Authority has special 
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of Conservation 
Areas. In addition Policy SP12 of the Local Plan Strategy also seeks to protect the significance of 
heritage assets.

There is not considered to be an adverse effect upon the setting of these nearby listed buildings given 
the levels and separation distances. The character and appearance of the Conservation Area and views 
from the Conservation Area looking north along the road are considered to be preserved.

Heritage England do not object to the setting of the Scheduled Ancient Monument. It is not considered 
that the proposed development will have an adverse effect upon the setting of the Scheduled Ancient 

Page 20



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

Monument given the site's location on substantially lower ground. It is therefore considered that the 
Local Planning Authority has fulfilled its obligations in relation to the aforementioned legislation and 
Policy SP12 of the Local Plan Strategy.

Drainage

Foul water is proposed to be drained via the mains sewer. Yorkshire Water has no objection in principle 
to this method of drainage.

Yorkshire Water has accepted that surface water can enter the mains sewer in the event that the site was 
not suitable for sustainable drainage, they have recommended a condition in respect of a restricted 
discharge rate into their sewer.  Following advice from the LLFA, surface water drainage is now 
proposed to be drained via soakaways which have been demonstrated to be effective through 
percolation tests. The LLFA therefore has no objections, subject to conditions. 

Archaeology 

NYCC Heritage has raised no objection to the proposal.

Highway safety

It is noted that the adopted public highway does not currently extend through the application site, the 
proposal is to extend the adoptable highway further north into the application site. The Highway 
Authority has considered the application and responded with the following comments:

'The supporting Design and Access Statement refers to the section of road within the application site 
becoming an adopted highway. The existing public highway limit is at the southern end of the site, and 
the extension proposed to serve new residential development would be in line with the county council 
policy whereby six or more new dwellings should be accessed off a road laid out and constructed to a 
standard such that its adoption as public-maintained highway could occur.

Given the previous use of the site, no highway authority objections are raised in principle.
However, referring to the proposed plans, the following will need to be addressed as part of the 
submission of plans for such adoption:

a) The proposed turning head should be included as part of the adoptable area, and be positively-
drained rather than constructed in permeable paving.

b) The upgraded road should be engineered for a 20mph design speed, using appropriate control 
measures in agreed locations.

c) The submitted site drainage survey has identified the existing road having two gullies and 
connections going into the existing system which connects into a public combined sewer further down 
Manor vale Lane.

As part of the adoption arrangements, the highway drainage will need to be separated from the surface 
water drainage proposed for the new dwellings. There should also be a requirement to install an 
underground storage and attenuation structure within the blue land (under the applicants' control) to 
the north which could help alleviate the flood flows that have been shown to use the existing road as an 
overland flow route from higher ground, and thereby reduce the likelihood and/or intensity of such 
flows running onto the adoptable road, together with a throttle discharge into the new surface water 
system.

It is presumed that all the existing site drainage will be abandoned and replaced with separate new 
dwelling foul and surface water drainage subject to incorporating any existing connection from third 
party premises, together with a new highway drainage system as mentioned above.'

Page 21



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

Consequently the Highway Authority recommend that planning conditions be imposed to address the 
above issues. The conditions recommended cover details of the layout of the roadway and footway; 
construction of roads and footways prior to occupation; discharge of surface water; pedestrian visibility 
splays; approval for works in the highway; completion of works in the highway before occupation; 
details and provision of an access turning and parking area; and the provision of electric charging points 
for each dwelling.
 
In reaching this judgement the Highway Authority has considered the capacity of the road network to 
accommodate the additional traffic safely, and the required layout for adoption purposes. In the 
circumstances there are considered to be no grounds to object to the application in terms of highway 
safety.  If the application were to be considered favourably, the applicants would need to ensure the 
proposed drainage works were re-located or agreement is reached for them to be located under the 
adopted highway. The requirement for the electric charging point is not supported by a Local Plan 
Policy requirement and the LPA has not sought such charging points from this scale of development 
previously. Neither is the site in a location with known Air Quality problems. It is therefore not 
considered to be reasonable or necessary to impose a condition in respect of the charging points. If 
approved, an informative could, however, be added.

Affordable Housing

On sites for between 6-10 dwellings in locations such as Kirkbymoorside, the Planning Committee 
agreed at its July 2016 meeting, a financial contribution should be provided in lieu of affordable 
housing provision. This followed a Court case and change to National Planning Policy. In accordance 
with National Policy Guidance, there should also be a credit for any vacant buildings on the site. The 
Council's Rural Housing Enabler has calculated the contribution on this site to be £37k. If this 
application were to be considered favourably, this contribution will need to be delivered via a S106 
agreement.

Contamination and ground stability issues

The Council's Environment Specialist has stated:

'The 'GEO Environmental Engineering, Revised Phase 2: Ground Investigation Report 2016', 
referenced 2013-512, details results of contamination testing that reveal elevated levels of organic 
contamination on site that poses a potential significant risk to the proposed end users.  The report also 
details visual/olfactory evidence of fuel type contamination within the materials on site, the presence of 
which has been analytically confirmed in shallow soils.

Elevated levels of leachate contamination have also been identified that are considered as posing a 
potential future risk to controlled waters and the environment.

For the above reasons the report recommends that further risk assessment (Detailed Quantitative Risk 
Assessment - DQRA), remediation or protection measures are required.  Consideration should be given 
to revealing 'hotspots' of contamination not yet identified.'

The submitted reports identify significant ground contamination on the site, accordingly the 
Environmental Specialist recommends detailed planning conditions in regard to the Phase 2 
Contaminated Land Report on this site and requires further detailed assessment of potential 
contaminants on the site, if this application were to be approved. 

There are understood to be caves under or near to the site, and there are some reservations about ground 
stability for the construction of the proposed dwellings. However, the Local Planning Authority does 
not have any evidence with regard to ground stability issues on the site and there is no evidence to 
substantiate this as a reason for refusal. If the application is approved, a 'grampian' style pre-
commencement condition could be required for the applicant to demonstrate the ground is stable and 

Page 22



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

capable of accommodating the proposed development. In view of the above objections, however, this 
has not been requested from the applicant prior to the determination of this application. Moreover, if 
approved, the safe construction of the development in relation to ground conditions will be addressed in 
accordance with Building Regulations.

Ecology and the impact of the proposed development upon protected species and Manor Vale SINC

Ecological and Protected Species surveys have been undertaken. They have confirmed that there would 
not be a material adverse effect upon Manor Vale Woodland (SINC) to the north. Mitigation 
recommendations are contained within the Surveys.

In response to this application, the Council's Specialist has stated:

'The proposed layout would not interfere with the protected species and habitats detected within the 
site. Provided the method statement in section 10 is followed. A badger licence may be required should 
the caving club license not be granted.'

In principle there are considered to be no ecological/wildlife objections to the proposed development. 
Policy SP14 is therefore considered to be satisfied.

Trees and Landscape impact

It is noted that trees have been felled on the outer sides of the site. These trees were not protected. The 
Tree and Landscape Specialist has been consulted on the previous application and no objections have 
been raised.  The Tree and Landscape Officer stated the following in relation to the previous planning 
application:

'These trees were not within the Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area boundary or the subject of a Tree 
Preservation Order. However, I understand that the Forestry Commission are investigating the felling 
to determine whether or not a felling license would have been required. Although the trees have been 
severed close to ground level their root systems have been retained which will promote extensive re-
growth in the coming year, and contrary to belief by some objectors to the development the felling of the 
trees should not compromise the stability of the bank as the roots are retained.

Should this application be approved I would recommend a condition requesting the submission of a 
woodland management plan for the regeneration of the woodland along the eastern boundary of the 
site'.'

It is understood that a Felling Licence was issued. There are therefore, considered to be no objections 
subject to planning conditions to the proposal, in terms of trees and landscaping on the site.

Given the surrounding typography and the site's location within the Town's development limits there is 
considered to be no wider adverse effect upon the surrounding landscape. The proposal is considered to 
comply with Policy SP13 of the Local Plan Strategy.

The Council's Specialist in relation to this application has also stated:

‘It is unclear how the area of woodland to the East of the site is to be managed in the long term, much of 
the existing trees have been removed in recent years but regeneration is likely to occur and this area 
needs to be retained as semi natural woodland.'

It is considered therefore that a condition should be imposed on any approval to manage the eastern part 
of the application site in respect of landscaping and trees.

Page 23



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

Other issues

North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue has not objected to the application.

The Town Council have agreed that the proposal would benefit the site on the provision that measures 
are implemented to reflect the detailed reports, and providing the scheme is not detrimental to the Band 
Hall. The Town Council are supportive of the principle of residential development on this site. The 
Town Council are, however, also concerned regarding surface water flooding and they have made 
reference to the previously submitted photographs and videos of the flooding events in Manor Vale that 
occurred in the winter of 2015-2016.

One letter has been received stating no objection to the development providing the existing drainage 
problems can be addressed. There have also been 14 responses from third parties raising 
objections/concerns.  

The issues raised in the objections relate to:

 The risk of surface water flooding and increased risk to existing properties;
 The ability of the existing drainage network to accommodate the proposed additional 

discharge;
 Whether if approved, another application would be submitted for more housing on the wider 

area;
 Implications for the Band Hall facilities;
 The principle of the proposed development;
 Drainage infrastructure;
 The loss of trees on the outer sides of the quarry and possible land stability problems;
 Access and highway safety related matters;
 That vehicular charging points are not catered for;
 Noise and implications relating to the Band Hall and whether complaints about statutory 

nuisance could be made about the Band Hall by future occupiers of the proposed dwellings;
 Inaccuracies and discrepancies with the Noise Assessment;
 The previous history relating the location of the Band Hall;
 That the Band does practice with windows/doors opened and also outdoors in the summer 

months;
 The condition and appearance of the site;
 Questioning why RDC keeps accepting further planning applications on this site;
 No visitor parking spaces
 No natural surveillance of the parking areas;
 The consultation period running over the festive period; and
 Whether this housing is sustainable and questions regarding the need for the development.

The condition and appearance of the site is self-evident. The site would benefit from appropriate 
development. The issue of the principle of the development, noise, surface water flooding, the impact of 
the community facilities, trees, and highway safety have been addressed earlier in this report. There is 
considered to be no policy requirement to impose a condition regarding vehicle charging points. Any 
future applications for residential development on the wider site would be considered on its individual 
merits against the development plan at that point in time. The Local Planning Authority has a statutory 
duty to determine planning applications, and there is no reason for the LPA to refuse to entertain this 
application. The Tree and Landscape Officer has previously stated that the tree felling on the outer sides 
has not removed the root systems so the stability of the land should not be adversely affected. The 
parking areas are located in areas with passing traffic and pedestrians. The level of surveillance is 
considered to be acceptable. The consultation period did include the festive period, like many other 
planning applications. It is considered that reasonable time was allowed for third party comments and 
further re-consultation has taken place.

Page 24



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

All of the individual comments raised can be viewed online under the application reference number.

Community Infrastructure Levy

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is chargeable on this proposed development, at a rate of £85m2. 

Conclusion

In view of the above assessment together with the appropriate redevelopment of this Brownfield site, on 
balance it is recommended that the application be approved subject to a S106 agreement in respect of 
Affordable Housing.

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL – subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement in respect 
of Affordable Housing

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004

2 Notwithstanding the submitted details and before the development hereby permitted is 
commenced, or such longer period as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority, details and samples of the materials to be used on the exterior of the building the 
subject of this permission shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 
construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre square 
free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. The 
panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

4 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of all windows, doors and garage 
doors, including means of opening, depth of reveal and external finish shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure an appropriate appearance and to comply with the requirements of Policies 
SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

5 Before the commencement of the development hereby permitted, or such longer period as 
may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, full details of the materials and 
design of all means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter these shall be erected prior to the occupation of any dwelling 
to which they relate.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality, as required by 
Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Page 25



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

6 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works or the depositing of material 
on the site, until the following drawings and details have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority:

a. Detailed engineering drawings to a scale of not less than 1:500 and based upon an accurate 
survey showing:

 the proposed highway layout including the highway boundary
 dimensions of any carriageway, cycleway, footway, and verges
 visibility splays
 the proposed buildings and site layout, including levels
 accesses and driveways
 drainage and sewerage system
 lining and signing
 traffic calming measures
 all types of surfacing (including tactiles), kerbing and edging.

b. Longitudinal sections to a scale of not less than 1:500 horizontal and not less than 1:50
vertical along the centre line of each proposed road showing:

 the existing ground level
 the proposed road channel and centre line levels
 full details of surface water drainage proposals.

c. Full highway construction details including:

 typical highway cross-sections to scale of not less than 1:50 showing a specification for all the 
types of construction proposed for carriageways, cycleways and footways/footpaths

 when requested cross sections at regular intervals along the proposed roads showing the 
existing and proposed ground levels

 kerb and edging construction details
 typical drainage construction details.

d. Details of the method and means of surface water disposal.

e. Details of all proposed street lighting.

f. Drawings for the proposed new roads and footways/footpaths giving all relevant 
dimensions for their setting out including reference dimensions to existing features.

g. Full working drawings for any structures which affect or form part of the highway network.

h. A programme for completing the works.

The development shall only be carried out in full compliance with the approved drawings and 
details unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority with the Local 
Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.

INFORMATIVE
In imposing condition number above it is recommended that before a detailed planning 
submission is made a draft layout is produced for discussion between the applicant, the Local 
Planning Authority and the Highway Authority in order to avoid abortive work. The agreed 
drawings must be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the purpose of 
discharging this condition.

Page 26



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy and to secure an 
appropriate highway constructed to an adoptable standard in the interests of highway safety 
and the amenity and convenience of highway users.

7 No dwelling to which this planning permission relates shall be occupied until the carriageway 
and any footway/footpath from which it gains access is constructed to basecourse macadam 
level and/or block paved and kerbed and connected to the existing highway network with 
street lighting installed and in operation.

The completion of all road works, including any phasing, shall be in accordance with a 
programme approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the 
Highway Authority before the first dwelling of the development is occupied.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy and to ensure safe and 
appropriate access and egress to the dwellings, in the interests of highway safety and the 
convenience of prospective residents.

8 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 
site until full details of any measures required to prevent surface water from non-highway 
areas discharging on to the existing or proposed highway together with a programme for their 
implementation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. The works shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details and programme.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy and in the interests of 
highway safety.

9 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 
site (except for the purposes of constructing the initial site access) until visibility splays 
providing clear visibility of 2 metres x 2 metres measured down each side of the access and 
the back edge of the footway of the major road have been provided. The eye height will be 
1.05 metre and the object height shall be 0.6 metres. Once created, these visibility areas shall 
be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all times.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy and the interests of road 
safety to provide drivers of vehicles using the access and other users of the public highway 
with adequate inter-visibility commensurate with the traffic flows and road conditions.

10 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of material 
on the site in connection with the construction of the access road or building(s) or other works 
until:

(i) The details of the following off site required highway improvement works, works listed 
below have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Local Highway Authority:

a. Provision of a pedestrian route along the whole length of Manor Vale Lane on the east side 
of the existing carriageway to be lined out with appropriate road markings and symbols at a 
width of 1.0 metres together with appropriate warning signs and supplementary plates on 
poles all in accordance with the relevant Diagram Numbers of the Traffic Signs Regulations 
and General Directions 2016 (TSRGD16).

b. Alteration and addition to the existing 'GIVE WAY' road markings at the junction of Manor 
Vale Lane with Dale End to re-position the lines at the front of the adjacent on-street parking 

Page 27



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

area immediately to the east of the junction and defining the parking area to the front of Nos. 
12 to 22 Dale End to separate the junction and parking area all in accordance with the relevant 
Diagram Numbers in TSRGD16.

(iii) A programme for the completion of the proposed works has been submitted to and 
approved writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Local Highway 
Authority.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy and to ensure that the 
details are satisfactory in the interests of the safety and convenience of highway users.

11 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 
the Highway Authority, the development shall not be brought into use until the following 
highway works have been constructed in accordance with the details approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority under condition number 5 (above):

Road markings and traffic signs as described in that condition.

INFORMATIVE
You are advised that a separate licence will be required from the Highway Authority in order 
to allow any works in the adopted highway to be carried out. The 'Specification for Housing 
and Industrial Estate Roads and Private Street Works' published by North Yorkshire County 
Council, the Highway Authority, is available at the County Council's offices. The local office 
of the Highway Authority will also be pleased to provide the detailed constructional 
specification referred to in this condition.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 and in the interests of the safety and convenience of 
highway users.

12 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of material 
on the site in connection with the construction of the access road or building(s) or other works 
hereby permitted until full details of the following have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority:

a. cycle parking
b. refuse/recycling bin storage and collection arrangements.

INFORMATIVE
The proposals shall cater for all types of vehicles that will use the site. The parking standards 
are set out in the North Yorkshire County Council publication 'Transport Issues and 
Development - A Guide' available at www.northyorks.gov.uk

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy and to ensure appropriate 
on-site facilities in the interests of highway safety and the general amenity of the 
development.

13 No part of the development shall be brought into use until the approved vehicle access, 
parking, manoeuvring and turning areas approved under condition number 12:

a. are available for use unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Once created these areas shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their 
intended purpose at all times.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy and to provide for 

Page 28



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

appropriate on-site vehicle facilities in the interests of highway safety and the general amenity 
of the development.

14 No development for any phase of the development shall take place until a Construction 
Method Statement for that phase has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority in consultation with the Local Highway Authority. The approved 
Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period for the phase. The statement 
shall provide for the following in respect of the phase:

a. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
b. loading and unloading of plant and materials
c. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
d. erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities 
for public viewing where appropriate
e. wheel washing facilities
f. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
g. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction
works

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy and to provide for 
appropriate on-site vehicle parking and storage facilities, in the interests of highway safety 
and the general amenity of the area.

15 Development shall not commence until a scheme detailing foul and surface water drainage 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
shall detail phasing of the development and phasing of drainage provision, where appropriate. 
Principles of sustainable urban drainage shall be employed wherever possible. The works 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved phasing. No part or phase of the 
development shall be brought into use until the drainage works approved for that part or phase 
has been completed. 

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate and sustainable means of drainage in the 
interests of amenity and flood risk and to satisfy Policy SP17 of the Local Plan Strategy and 
NPPF.

16 Development shall not commence until a scheme restricting the rate of development flow 
runoff from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The flowrate from the site shall be restricted to greenfield runoff rate and/or a 
minimum 30% reduction of the existing positively drained runoff rate for the 1 in 1, 1 in 30 
and 1 in 100 year rainfall events.  A 30% allowance shall be included for climate change 
effects for the lifetime of the development. Storage shall be provided to accommodate the 
minimum 1 in 100 year plus climate change critical storm event. The scheme shall include a 
detailed maintenance and management regime for the storage facility. No part of the 
development shall be brought into use until the development flow restriction works 
comprising the approved scheme have been completed. The approved maintenance and 
management scheme shall be implemented throughout the lifetime of the development. 

Reason: To mitigate additional flood impact from the development proposals and ensure that 
flood risk is not increased elsewhere and to satisfy Policy SP17 of the Local Plan Strategy and 
NPPF.

17 No development shall take place until an appropriate Exceedance Flow Plan for the site has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Site design must 
be such that when SuDS features fail or are exceeded, exceedance flows do not cause flooding 
of properties on or off site. This is achieved by designing suitable ground exceedance or flood 
pathways. Runoff must be completely contained within the drainage system (including areas 

Page 29



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

designed to hold or convey water) for all events up to a 1 in 30 year event. The design of the 
site must ensure that flows resulting from rainfall in excess of a 1 in 100 year rainfall event are 
managed in exceedance routes that avoid risk to people and property both on and off site.

Reason: to prevent flooding to properties during extreme flood events and to mitigate against 
the risk of flooding on and off the site and to satisfy Policy SP17 of the Local Plan Strategy 
and NPPF.

18 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved the following information 
shall be submitted in writing and agreed with the Local Planning Authority: 

 A detailed, risk assessment (Detailed Quantitative Risk Assessment - DQRA) shall be 
undertaken at the site to establish the extent of the contamination identified in the GEO 
Environmental Engineering, Revised Phase 2: Ground Investigation Report 2016', referenced 
2013-512.  This will include further sampling and analysis across the site as required.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other receptors.

19 Where land affected by contamination is found which poses risks identified as unacceptable, 
no development or remediation shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring 
the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority.  The scheme must include proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, an appraisal of remedial options and proposal of the 
preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, and a description and programme of the works 
to be undertaken including the verification plan.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other receptors.

20 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, none of the dwellings shall 
be occupied (or the site shall not be brought into use) until the approved scheme of 
remediation has been completed, and a verification report demonstrating the effectiveness of 
the remediation carried out has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The verification report shall include a description of the works undertaken 
and a photographic record where appropriate, the results of any additional monitoring or 
sampling, evidence that any imported soil is from a suitable source, and copies of relevant 
waste documentation for any contaminated material removed from the site.

21 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to the local 
planning authority.  An appropriate investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken, 
and where remediation is necessary, a remediation scheme must be prepared by competent 
persons and submitted to the local planning authority for approval.  Following completion of 
measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other receptors.

Page 30



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

22 The development will be undertaken in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk 
Assessments and Drainage information from Dudleys.

Reason: In order to ensure the site is effectively drained and to satisfy Policy SP17 of the 
Local Plan and NPPF.

23 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s):

KWL/093/03/14 Rev. H
KWL/093/12 Rev. F
KWL/093/03 Rev. P
KWL/093/003/11

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

24 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the landscaping for the 
development shall be submitted for approval in writing. The submitted scheme shall include a 
planting schedule providing details of species, planting sizes, and numbers of each species 
and their locations within the scheme. The approved scheme shall be carried out before the 
use hereby permitted is commenced and prior to the completion of the development, or in 
accordance with a phased programme of development agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. If within a period of five years after planting (and including the existing tree or 
hedge to be retained), any trees or plant is removed, dies or becomes, in the opinion of the 
Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged, defective or diseased, another tree or plant of 
the same species and size as that originally approved shall be planted at the same place within 
the next planting season, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any 
variation. 

Reason: In the interests of compliance with Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 
Strategy, and in the interests of amenity and enhancement of the development.

25 The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance with the Noise 
Assessment by YES Consulting including all required mitigation measures.

Reason: In order to protect the residential amenities of future occupiers and to satisfy Policy 
SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

26 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town & Country Planning 
(General Permitted development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or 
amending that Order), development of the following classes shall not be undertaken other 
than as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority following a specific 
application in that respect:

Class A: Enlargement, improvement or alteration of a dwellinghouse 
Class B: Addition to the roof of a dwellinghouse 
Class C: Any other alteration to the roof of a dwellinghouse 
Class D: Erection or construction of a domestic external porch 
Class E(a): Provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of any building or enclosure, 
swimming or other pool required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of a dwellinghouse 
or the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of such a building or enclosure.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the area is not prejudiced by the introduction of 
unacceptable materials and/or structure(s) and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan, the 
Local Plan Strategy.

Page 31



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

27 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved precise details of the ground 
surfacing materials shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the 
Local Plan Strategy.

28 The demolition of existing buildings and groundworks shall not in any circumstances 
commence unless the Local Planning Authority has been provided with either:

(a) A licence issued by Natural England pursuant to The Protection of Badgers Act 1992 
authorising the specified activity/development to go ahead; or
(b) A Statement in writing from the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does not 
consider that the specified activity/development will require a license.

Reason: In order to take account of protected species and to satisfy Policy SP14 of the Local 
Plan Strategy.

29 All ecological measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
contained in Section9 and 10 of the Ecological Assessment for the Old Council Depot 
Kirkbymoorside (MAB 2016) as already submitted with the planning application and agreed 
in principle with Local Planning Authority prior to determination.

Reason: In order to take account of protected species and to satisfy Policy SP14 of the Local 
Plan Strategy.

30 Prior to the occupation of the dwellings hereby approved precise details of speed 
bumps/rubble strips within the application site shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to protect the amenity of the surrounding occupiers and to satisfy Policy 
SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy.

31 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a 20 - year woodland 
management plan for the trees on the eastern boundary of the application site shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing. The management plan will contain details of the heights 
of the retained trees and any new planting on the application site.

Reason: In order to protect and manage the existing trees and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the 
Local Plan Strategy.

32 Prior to the commencement of the development a ground condition/structural survey shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure the ground is capable of safely accommodating he development 
proposed and to satisfy NPPF.

33 Prior to the commencement of the development precise details of the management and 
maintenance of the shared communal area shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure the area is available for its intended purpose and to protect the 
amenity of the surrounding area and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 32



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

INFORMATIVE(S)

1 The applicant/developer is advised to consider the contents of the Environment Agency's 
consultation response dated 15 December 2017.

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

Item Number: 7
Application No: 17/01517/MREM
Parish: Norton Town Council
Appn. Type: Approval of Reserved Matters Major
Applicant: Keepmoat Homes (Ms A Beare)
Proposal: Erection of 20no. four bedroom dwellings, 36no. three bedroom dwellings and 

23no. two bedroom dwellings with associated infrastructure and landscaping 
(outline approval 15/00098/MOUT as allowed on appeal 22.07.2016 refers)

Location: Land Adjacent To Auburn Cottages Langton Road Norton Malton North 
Yorkshire

Registration Date: 8 January 2018 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 9 April 2018
Case Officer: Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276

CONSULTATIONS:

NY Highways & Transportation Views awaited
Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No comments - outside the IDB district
Yorkshire Water Land Use Planning Recommend conditions
Housing Services Support
Countryside Officer No objection 
Parish Council Recommend refusal
Sustainable Places Team (Environment-Agency Yorkshire Area)
Designing Out Crime Officer (DOCO) Recommendations
Archaeology Section Comments
Lead Local Flood Authority Comments
Building Conservation Officer Views awaited
Highways North Yorkshire Views awaited

Neighbour responses: Andrew And Denise Bellwood, Miss Janella Calvert, Mr 
Eugene Kelly, Mr And Miss Andrew And Catherine 
White And Rigg, Mary, John And Jennifer Cowton, Mr 
John Patten, 

Overall Expiry Date:      28 May 2018

2

APPRIASAL:

This Reserved Matters application was deferred from the May Planning Committee meeting, Members 
are asked to refer to their May agendas for the details of the proposed scheme (excluding the superseded 
plans on page 103 and pages 107-122 of the main agenda). Members deferred the application in order 
for the outstanding details to be addressed before making a decision. The outstanding information 
related to:

 Highway safety matters
 Satisfactory brick samples
 Landscaping and Countryside Specialist issues

Copies of the additional information submitted in relation to the above three points is attached to this 
report, this is currently the subject of consultation with interested parties until 28 May 2018.

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

5 June 2018

Highway Safety matters

The Highway Authority have not raised objection to the re-arrangement of plots within the main site to 
ensure a maximum of 5 dwellings are served by private drives, and provide sufficient visibility. The 
Highway Authority have, however, suggested changes to the access point for pedestrians and cyclists 
onto Bazeley's Lane. The Highway Authority prefer the access point to be located on the eastern side of 
the application site, to align with a footpath on the opposite side of the road. Discussions are ongoing on 
this issue and Members will be updated.

It is noted that the amended plans features a deliberate stagger on the footpath to prevent cyclists 
pedalling straight onto Bazeley's lane. The arrangement should ensure cyclists dismount, before 
approaching Bazeley's Lane.

Satisfactory brick samples

The developer has updated the plans to include two brick samples; Ibstock Birtley old English (Buff) 
and the Ibstock Grainger Autumn. The proposed brick types are considered to be acceptable in this 
location.

Landscaping and Countryside Issues

The Council's Countryside Management Specialist has no objection to the additional details submitted. 
However, in view of the Highway Authority's response, part of the existing hedge (approximately 30 
metres  in length) is required to be removed to achieve the required visibility for the pedestrian/cyclist 
access point onto Bazeley's Lane. A replacement hedge will need to be re-planted 2.5m behind its 
current position. Discussions are ongoing with the applicant. Until this aspect is finalised, the 
Countryside Specialist cannot conclude on his assessment.

Conclusion

Subject to the resolution of a suitable access point onto Bazeley's Lane and details of the landscaping 
being agreed the recommendation of the case officer will be one of approval. It is anticipated an Update 
Report containing a final recommendation should be available for circulation to Members on the Late 
Pages.

RECOMMENDATION: To Follow 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Item Number: 8
Application No: 18/00036/MFUL
Parish: Rillington Parish Council
Appn. Type: Full Application Major
Applicant: Ellis Patents (Mr Richard Shaw)
Proposal: Erection of an industrial unit (Use Class B2 and B8) and covered area over 

existing service road to include installation of 408no. photovoltaic panels to 
the proposed roof slopes together with relocation of existing oil tank, 
formation of an additional 13no. car parking spaces and replanting of 
existing landscape screening.

Location: Ellis Patents High Street Rillington Malton YO17 8LA

Registration Date:  19 January 2018
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  20 April 2018 
Overall Expiry Date:  3 April 2018
Case Officer:  Niamh Bonner Ext: 325

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No objection 
Historic England Comments 
Yorkshire Water Land Use Planning No comments required 
Lead Local Flood Authority No response received 
Highways North Yorkshire Recommends condition 
Archaeology Section Recommend condition
Environmental Health Recommend condition
Countryside Officer Recommend condition

Neighbour responses: Mr Adrian Dukesell, 

SITE:

Ellis Patents is a precision engineering business, located within an industrial building comprised of a 
predominantly steel clad construction. The site is accessed off High Street and is situated to the south of 
properties on Woodlands Road and Woodlands Grove. The application site falls partially within the 
village development limits. 

The site which is approximately 22,760 square metres is bounded by; housing to the north, agricultural 
land to the east and south and to the west is the private entrance which runs adjacent to the cemetery. 

The site falls within an Archaeologically Sensitive Area.

PROPOSAL: 

This application seeks permission for the erection of an additional industrial unit (Use Class B2 and B8) 
to the east of the existing complex. This will include a covered area over the existing service road to 
protect the existing underground high voltage electricity cable, which requires 24 hour emergency 
access. 

This proposal also includes the installation of 408no. photovoltaic panels to the proposed roof slopes 
together with relocation of an existing oil tank, formation of an additional car parking spaces and 
replanting of existing landscape screening.

This additional building extension would form warehousing for the business whilst the existing 
warehouse would be converted to form additional manufacturing space.  

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE

POLICIES: 

Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP6 Delivery and Distributing of Employment Land and Premises
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP12 Heritage
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues

HISTORY:

The following applications are considered most relevant to the current proposal: 

07/01132/FUL: Erection of extension to factory. Approved 
10/01074/FUL Erection of single-storey office building to infill existing enclosed courtyard area and 
erection of two-storey office extension to the south of existing offices. Approved 
14/00150/FUL: Installation of a 10,000 litre capacity fuel oil tank on agricultural land immediately 
adjacent to existing commercial site boundary (retrospective application) Approved on appeal
14/00581/FUL: Replacement of asbestos wall cladding and roof with profiled metal cladding, 
installation of roof ridge ventilation, 2 no. vents each to south west and north east roofslopes and 3 no. 
louvres to south west elevation. Approved 

APPRAISAL:

The main considerations within the determination of this application are: 
i. The principle of development
ii. Character and form
iii. Impact upon residential amenity  
iv. Impact upon the archaeological sensitive area 
v. Impact upon access and highway safety
vi. Other matters, including consultation responses

i. The Principle of Development

Policy SP1 (General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy) notes that in all other 
villages, hamlets and in the open countryside development will be restricted to that 'which is necessary 
to support a sustainable, vibrant and healthy rural economy and communities.'

Rillington is identified as a local service centre within the Ryedale Local Plan. 

Policy SP6 Delivery and Distribution of Employment Land and Premises notes that in Service Villages 
and other villages “expansion land/sites for major employers/established businesses will be supported” 
Policy SP6 also notes the Council will aim to: “Offer opportunities for specialist sectors including 
precision engineering and advanced manufacturing and existing key businesses. This will include: 
expansion space for existing businesses, new sites and premises for move on accommodation to support 
business growth and growing these key clusters.”

SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy highlights that “developments that generate renewable 
and/or low carbon sources of energy will be supported providing that individually and cumulatively 
proposals can be satisfactorily assimilated into the landscape or built environment.”

It is therefore considered that the principle of this development which relates to the expansion of an 
existing building at this Service Village, to allow the continued growth of a successful local precision 
engineering business at this Service Village is acceptable in accordance with Policy SP6 of the Ryedale 
Plan, Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 52



PLANNING COMMITTEE

ii. Character and Form 

This application relates to the erection of an extension to the existing factory along the rear eastern 
elevation of the existing unit. It would also project approximately 12 metres further south than the 
existing building range.

This would relate to an expansion of approximately 33.9 metres along the northern elevation, of which 
12m is the covered internal area and a maximum span of approximately 43.02m along the eastern side 
elevation of the building. An extension to the existing concrete apron to the north and south of the 
building is also proposed. 

The proposed extension would increase the foot print of the manufacturing and warehouse space by 942 
square metres, with an additional 372 square metres of covered internal area. The total floor area will be 
increased from 2360 square metres to 3674 square metres. 

The proposed extension would maintain the eaves and ridge height of the existing units at 5.385m and 
7.258m respectively. This would be clad in wall and roof panels similar to those used on the existing 
unit with roof lights providing additional natural day light. A condition is considered necessary to 
ensure the proposed construction materials exactly accord with the construction materials of the 
original building, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

The form and design of the proposed building is considered to be acceptable and it would maintain the 
appearance of the existing building. The use of roof lights and the introduction of solar panels could be 
achieved without harm to the character and appearance of the building. 

It is however acknowledged that this development would result in development expanding further along 
this greenfield site. It is however considered that this extension to an existing established business 
premises is proportionate and that fundamentally would not harmfully alter the open character of the 
wider area on the edge of the village. 

The additional 13no. car parking spaces are also considered acceptable in terms of appearance. 

In terms of landscaping, there is an existing scheme in place along the northern boundary of the site. 
This incorporates a three tree deep section of planting. This proposed scheme incorporates the re-siting 
of some of the existing planting at a greater distance from the boundary shared with the residential 
properties to the north along Woodlands Road and Woodlands Grove. 

The Design and Access Statement notes that this approach has been undertaken following consultations 
undertaken with the neighbouring properties, noting “this will retain the screening but lessen the 
impact of the planting on neighbouring properties.”

This approach is considered acceptable and the proposed landscaping scheme will assist in limiting the 
potential impact of the proposed development. The Council’s Countryside Specialist has been 
consulted and has provided a verbal consultation response to note no object to the proposed alterations 
to the landscaping. This is subject to a condition seeking further landscaping details and to ensure the 
planting is undertaken within the first available planting season and requiring replacement planting if 
any of the planting fails within a 5 year period. 

Subject to the recommended conditions, it is considered that the proposal satisfies the requirements of 
Policy SP16 (Design) and SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of the Ryedale Plan - 
Local Plan Strategy.

iii. Impact upon residential amenity  

The closest residential properties to the site are those to the north along Woodlands Road and Woodland 
Grove. Woodlands Grove is a cul-de-sac and some of the properties in this street are positioned most 
closest to the location of the proposed factory extension. The properties along Woodlands Road are 
positioned at a greater distance due to their long linear gardens.

Page 53



PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Design and Access Statement and submitted annexes confirm that Ellis Patents held two 
consultation meetings with neighbours and other residents of Rillington. This statement notes that 
concerns were raised by neighbours within this phase of consultation in relation to the position of the 
existing oil tank, adjacent to the boundary of no. 4 and 5 Woodlands Grove and the impacts which had 
been experienced due to the positioning of the existing landscaping. It is noted that the oil tank has been 
proposed for repositioning within the covered external area to increase the distance from the nearby 
residential properties and that the landscaping has also been proposed for repositioning to prevent 
overshadowing of these neighbouring properties. 

The Design and Access Statement notes that in this direct consultation concerns were also raised in 
relation to the potential loss of light, and consequently Ellis Patents used sun tracking software to 
explore the shadowing casting. The statement also notes that concerns were raised in relation to noise 
generated by the plant, commenting “whilst this doesn’t directly relate to the proposed application, the 
company have taken these concerns on board and implemented a range of noise reduction measures 
identified…in Appendix 3.” 

A letter of objection has however been received from the occupier of no. 4 Woodlands Grove raising the 
following summarised points of concern:

1) The proposed open structure does not take into consideration the conditions imposed in an earlier 
planning application which stated that no doors were to be put on the rear and no vehicles to the rear due 
to the proximity of neighbouring dwellings.
2) Acknowledged that this open section was due to a requirement to maintain access for Northern 
Powergrid to an underground power cable. The cable has been moved once on the site, questioned 
which this could not be the case again. 
3) The open structure is shown as a loading bay. This will result in added noise from lorries and forklift 
trucks, with no screening from dust wind and fumes. Questioned why polythene sheeting could not be 
added. 
4) Concerned that open area would become a dumping ground for empty pallets/cable reels littered 
around existing site. 
5) Concerns over loss of daylight to their property several days a year. The Occupier confirms 
reviewing the computer generated model of the proposed impacts upon day lighting, however suggested 
the staggering of the extensions would aid in limiting this. 
6) Concern over continuing impacts as a result of alarms within the business causing disturbance. 
7) The extension is proposed to be used for storage uses only. This should be conditioned to ensure that 
they cannot be used for manufacturing in the future. 

In relation to point 1, the applicant has confirmed the doors within the northern elevation of the building 
are included only as fire doors. It is noted that they are narrow in width and would not be suitable for 
any types of heavy machinery/forklift vehicles. These types of machinery would utilise the proposed 
roller shutter doors which are positioned more southerly within the covered area. It is considered 
therefore that these fire doors along the northern elevation, even if used for pedestrian access would not 
result in harm to amenity, particularly due to the proposed landscaping between the site and the 
adjoining residential properties to the north. 

In relation to points 2 and 3, the open aspect of the design is noted. During the site meeting with the 
Case Officer, Ellis Patents confirmed that this external area would be used solely for housing of the oil 
tank, 24 hour emergency access for Northern Powergrid when required and by forklifts/trucks for 
loading/unloading. It is noted that the business already necessitates a number of vehicle movements, 
including a variety of types. These are detailed within Section 6.2 of the Design and Access Statement. 

The Statement noted that “the new building will not significantly increase the number of vehicle 
movements in general the company ship more products on the same vehicles.” The submitted plans 
show the vehicle tracking into this covered area. A condition has been agreed with the agent that no 
vehicles excepting maintenance /emergency vehicles could go beyond grid line B on the proposed floor 
plans. This would effectively limit any vehicles using the covered area as a thoroughfare to the rear of 
the site, in closer proximity to the neighbouring dwellings. The Environment Specialist notes that in 
their view, no significant dust, wind or fumes would be experienced by virtue of the presence or use of 

Page 54



PLANNING COMMITTEE

this covered area. 

It is therefore considered that whilst this development will result in loading/unloading in closer 
proximity to these neighbouring dwellings, that this would not result in any significant additional 
impact than the current arrangement.  

In relation to point 4, the proposed landscaping is considered likely to limit potential views of any 
pallets/cable reels on site from this neighbouring property. During the site visit there were no instance 
of the site appearing particularly untidy/unkempt. This level of control over on site storage is not 
something that could be effectively controlled by the Local Planning Authority. However it is 
considered that the additional warehouse space will increase the covered storage available to the 
business.  

In relation to point 5, No. 4 Woodland Grove is the closest residential dwelling to the proposed 
extension, situated at a distance of c26m from the proposed extension. It would experience a more direct 
view of the extension that previously, as the factory building is currently offset.  

The Agent has however provided the Case Officer with the previously referenced computer generated 
videos/images pertaining to potential shadowing as a result of the proposed development. This 
illustrates the potential shadowing over the course of the day, should there be no cloud cover on the 
spring, summer, autumn and winter equinoxes/solstices. 

The report noted “The winter and summer solstice dates are the shortest and longest days of the year 
respectively and the equinox dates are a midpoint in the Suns seasonal trajectory as the length of day 
and night is approximately equal. By using these four dates the shadow cast by the Ellis’ buildings for 
the extremes and averages of the Suns trajectory were found.”

This shows no shadowing of any properties or gardens on the spring, summer or autumn equinoxes. 
However on the winter equinox, it was noted that the adjoining properties no.3 and no. 4 Woodland 
Grove would experience some overshadowing of their property to the rear between 08:30am and 
09:00am. Between 09:15 and 09:30 these properties would not be overshadowed, but part of the garden 
would experience some overshadowing. Between 15:15pm and 15:30 it is noted that there would also 
be a level of shadowing in the rear garden of the adjoining properties no’s 4,5,6,7,8 Woodland Grove 
and at 15:30 this would reach as far as the rear elevations of no’s 6,7 and 8. 

Whilst this overshadowing in mid-winter is noted, this would be the most extreme point within the year 
and this would be experienced for a relatively limited time period. From 10:00-15:00 hours, which are 
the hours of greatest daylight in the mid-winter, no impacts upon sunlight would be experienced in 
either the properties or the associated rear gardens. It is considered at the times where shadowing has 
been identified the original daylight levels are likely to be low.  Furthermore, it is noted that the 
landscaping repositioning will assist in limiting overshadowing throughout the year. 

On balance, it is therefore considered that these adjoining properties would not experience any material 
additional harmful impact by virtue of unacceptable overshadowing.

With regard to point 6, in relation to alarms, this would not be a matter that could be dealt with through 
this planning application. However it is noted that separate actions have been proposed by Ellis Patents 
within the consultation meeting to try and address this referenced in the appendices. 

In light of point 7 raised by the occupier of 4 Woodlands Grove, it is considered appropriate to attach a 
condition to ensure that the proposed development is used solely for warehousing. This was agreed as 
an acceptable approach by the Planning Agent. 

 It is acknowledged that some views of the structure may be experienced by the occupiers of the 
properties along Woodlands Grove. However it is considered that the proposed landscaping will help to 
soften the appearance of this industrial building. The proposed design will continue the appearance of 
the existing building and it is considered that the proposed eaves and ridge heights are relatively low in 
scale for an industrial style building aiding to limit the overall massing of development. 

Page 55



PLANNING COMMITTEE

A condition is recommended to ensure that no other lighting will be installed at the site without prior 
approval of the Local Planning Authority.

This proposal satisfies the requirements of Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of 
the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

iv. Impact upon the archaeologically sensitive area

As noted, the application site is within an area of archaeological interest. This is in close proximity to 
the Iron Age barrow cemetery and settlement at Rillington, which is a Scheduled Monument. No 
archaeological assessments were provided within the initially submitted documents. Peter Rowe, 
Principal Archaeologist at North Yorkshire County Council provided the following consultation 
response on the 13th March 2018.  

“The proposed development has a large footprint including a new warehouse building, car parking, 
drainage, access and landscaping. This brings the factory significantly closer to the Scheduled area. 
Aerial photographs also indicated a number of square barrows in the field to the south-east of the 
factory, outside of the Scheduled area and it is reasonable to assume that similar remains will be 
present at the application site.

I recommend that a scheme of archaeological evaluation should be undertaken to identify and describe 
the nature and significance of any surviving archaeological remains within the proposed development 
area, and enable an understanding of the potential impact of the proposal upon their significance.

In the first instance, I would advise that this evaluation should comprise geophysical survey, to be 
followed by trial trenching, as appropriate.”

Historic England responded on the 26th March to confirm that in their view the letter from Peter Rowe, 
Principal Archaeologist dated 133th March 2018 sets out a suitable strategy which Historic England 
supports and they did not require further consultation. 

The applicant submitted an Archaeological Geophysical Survey as requested on the 25th April 2018 
and within a consultation response dated 2nd May 2018, Peter Rowe, Principal Archaeologist noted the 
following: 

“The development is within an area of archaeological interest and is in close proximity to the Iron Age 
barrow cemetery and settlement at Rillington (NHL 1004072) which is a Scheduled Monument. The 
developer has provided the results of an archaeological geomagnetic survey. This has not revealed any 
anomalies of definite archaeological interest such as Iron Age square barrows which would almost 
certainly have shown in the data if present.

The geophysical survey has indicated a number of very discrete anomalies, such as pits, that may be 
archaeological and of potential significance given their proximity to the Scheduled Monument. The 
report also notes that geophysical survey does not always pick up every archaeological feature that 
might be present, particularly if results are masked by modern disturbance as is the case in parts of this 
site. Given the proximity to a known ritual landscape any deposits encountered could have intrinsic 
value and have added significance as part of an archaeological landscape.

I advise that a scheme of archaeological mitigation recording is undertaken in response to the ground 
disturbing works associated with this development proposal. This should comprise an archaeological 
strip, map and record to be undertaken in advance of development, including site preparation works, 
top soil stripping, excavations for new foundations and new drainage or services, to be followed by 
appropriate analyses, reporting and archive preparation. This is in order to ensure that a detailed 
record is made of any deposits/remains that will be disturbed.” An appropriate condition was 
recommended in this respect. 

Page 56



PLANNING COMMITTEE

It is therefore considered that subject to the recommended condition this proposal would accord with 
Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Local Plan and Section 12 of the NPPF (paragraph 141
       
v. Impact upon access and highway safety

The existing vehicular and pedestrian access to the site will remain unaltered. 

Within an initial email response, the North Yorkshire Highways Officer noted concerns with regard to 
“an increase in light goods vehicles (LGVs) parking proposed from 32 to 61 spaces” within the 
submitted plan and Design & Access Statement. Clarification was requested in order to understand the 
extent of vehicle trips the additional LGVs would have on traffic figures allied to delivery & collection 
and how this would reflect against the two existing traffic surveys which have been provided.

A revised plan was received on the 13th March 2018 from the applicant which demonstrated a reduction 
in the proposed car parking spaces from 61 to 45. An accompanying email from the agent noted that 
“Section 10 of the planning application had been filled out in error. The increase of Vehicle Parking 
should refer to Cars (Staff and Visitor parking) as per the drawings and Design and Access Statement 
and not LGV’s“

An updated consultation response was received from North Yorkshire Highways on the 16th March 
2018 to note no objection to the proposal subject to a condition to ensure the proposed parking spaces 
remained available for their intended use. 

It is therefore considered that subject to the recommended condition, the proposal would have no 
significant additional impact in terms of access and highway safety upon the existing access 
arrangements in accordance with policy sp20 of the Ryedale Plan, Local Plan Strategy. 

vi. Other Matters, including consultation responses

The Parish Council have responded to note they had no objections in relation to this proposal. 

The Council’s Environment Specialist accompanied the Case Officer on the site visit and confirmed no 
objection to the proposal. 

Yorkshire Water confirmed they had no observation comments to the application. 

With the exception of the consultation response which has been received from the occupier of no. 4 
Woodlands Grove, which was fully detailed above, no further representations were received from any 
third parties. 

In light of the above considerations, subject to the recommended conditions, this proposal is considered 
to satisfy the relevant policy criteria outlined within Policies SP1, SP6, SP12, SP16, SP18, SP19 and 
SP20 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s):

Site Location Plan (Drawing no. PD224-01)
As Proposed Elevations (Drawing no. PD224-04-C)
As Proposed Ground Floor Plans (Drawing no. PD224-03-C)

Page 57



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Proposed Block Plan (Drawing no. PD224-06-D)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 Before preparation of any groundworks and foundations on site for the development hereby 
approve a scheme of soft landscaping shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These details shall include indications of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land, including those to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection which shall comply in full with BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, 
demolition & construction - Recommendations, in the course of the development, together 
with a scheme for the subsequent maintenance of any trees, shrubs and hedges retained on the 
site and any proposed to be planted as part of the approved landscaping scheme. Soft 
landscape details shall include planting plans, written specifications, schedules of plants - 
noting species (which should be indigenous), planting sizes and proposed density. 
All planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following either the substantial 
completion of the development or the occupation of the development, whichever is the 
sooner. 

Any trees, shrubs, hedges or plants which within a period of five years from the completion of 
development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 
the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

Reason: To protect visual amenity and the character of the area and to ensure a satisfactory 
environment having regard to Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan, Local Plan Strategy, coupled 
with the requirements of paragraphs 17 and 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012

4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the construction 
materials to be used on the exterior of the industrial extension hereby approved shall accord in 
all respects with the appearance of the construction materials of the original building. 

 
Reason: In the interests of good design and in compliance with Policy SP16 and SP20 of the 
Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy and the NPPF

5 A) No demolition/development shall commence until a Written Scheme of Investigation has 
been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. The scheme shall 
include an assessment of significance and research questions; and:
1. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording
2. Community involvement and/or outreach proposals
3. The programme for post investigation assessment
4. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording
5. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the 
site investigation
6. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 
investigation
7. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out 
within the Written Scheme of Investigation.
B) No demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the Written 
Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A).
C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation
assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written 
Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, 
publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP12 Heritage of the Ryedale Plan, Local Plan Strategy 
and Section 12 of the NPPF (paragraph 141) as the site is of archaeological significance.

Page 58



PLANNING COMMITTEE

6 Notwithstanding the provision of any Town and Country Planning General Permitted or 
Special.

Development Order for the time being in force, the areas shown on Drawing Number
PD-224-06-D for parking spaces, turning areas and access shall be kept available for their
intended purposes at all times.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy and to 
ensure these areas are kept available for their intended use in the interests of highway safety 
and the general amenity of the development.

7 The extension to the industrial building hereby approved shall be used only for 
warehousing/industrial storage facilities. 

Reason:  In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy and to 
ensure the amenity of neighbouring residential properties is protected. 

8 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no lighting shall be 
installed on the extension to the industrial building hereby approved.  

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity and the character of the open countryside in 
accordance with SP16 of the Ryedale Plan, Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

Item Number: 9
Application No: 18/00202/MFUL
Parish: South Holme Parish Council
Appn. Type: Full Application Major
Applicant: A R Farnell (Mr Andrew Farnell)
Proposal: Erection of an agricultural poultry rearing building with feed bins and area 

of hardstanding following the demolition of existing agricultural buildings.
Location: Beech Tree House South Holme Slingsby Malton YO62 4BA

Registration Date:  28 February 2018
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  30 May 2018 (Extension of time agreed until 6 June 2018)
Overall Expiry Date:  11 April 2018
Case Officer:  Alan Goforth Ext: Ext 332

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No response received to date
Highways North Yorkshire No objections 
Environmental Health Officer No response received to date
Flood Risk (LLFA) Comments and recommendations 
Public Rights Of Way Recommend informative 
Yorkshire Water Land Use Planning No response received to date 

Neighbour responses:

SITE:

Beech Tree Farm is an existing farm holding situated in the open countryside approximately 600m west 
of South Holme, Slingsby, Malton. The application site is land forming part of an established poultry 
farm that currently consists of No. 4 units with a capacity of up to 120,000 birds.

A section of the existing farm access track (approx. 200m stretch) falls within Flood Zones 2 and 3 
although the proposed poultry unit itself is south of the areas of highest flood risk (within Flood Zone 
1). 

Beech Tree Cottage is 30m to the north of the proposed building and Beech Tree House stands 60m to 
the west. South Holme Farm is 0.5km to the south west and a row of cottages along West View are 
0.5km to the east. Public Right of Way no. 25.89/3/1 runs east – west along the farm access track and 
meets Public Right of Way no. 25.89/9/1 which leads south in front of Beech Tree Cottage before 
heading west away from the farmyard and application site.

PROPOSAL:

This proposal seeks planning permission for the erection of an agricultural building for the rearing of 
poultry which will house up to 55,000 birds, increasing the on-site capacity to 175,000 birds. 

The proposed building would be a steel portal frame construction measuring 104m x 24.69m reaching 
3m high at eaves level and 6.39m at ridge height. The building would be of a dual-pitched design clad 
with natural grey polyester coated steel profile sheeting for the walls and slate blue steel profile sheeting 
for the roof. Soakaway trenches would runs parallel to the south and north sides the length of the 
building, a control room (9m²) would be attached to the front south side of the building and two feeds 
bins on the northern side. The front double door entrance to the building would be in the western 
elevation and a 24.5m by 14m concrete apron would be laid to the front of the building. 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

The new building would make use of the existing site access and would require the demolition of a 
range of single storey, redundant agricultural buildings and the removal of part of a row of conifers. It is 
proposed that a replacement tree belt is planted around the rear, east facing elevation of the building. 

Internally the building would contain pan feeders, non-drip nipple drinkers. The building would 
incorporate high velocity ridge mounted ventilation fans, side inlet vents and a gable end fan (eastern 
side) for use during hot weather. The heating, ventilation, feeding and lighting systems as controlled by 
the computer system that will be housed in the control room.  

The expansion of the poultry farm business would result in an increase in HGV movements from 780 
movements per annum to 1104.

As required by the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 
the application has been screened and the Local Planning Authority has determined that the proposal 
does not constitute EIA development and need not be accompanied by an Environmental Statement.

HISTORY:

12/00407/MFULE- Erection of a broiler unit (north unit) for the housing of 30,000 poultry. Approved 
25.07.2012.

12/00408/MFULE- Erection of a broiler unit (south unit) for the housing of 30,000 poultry. Approved 
25.07.2012.

POLICIES:

Under Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 planning authorities are 
required to determine each planning application in accordance with the planning policies that comprise 
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan for the 
determination of this particular application comprises the following:

 The Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy (2013)

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013)

Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP9 The Land-Based and Rural Economy  
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP17 Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues

Material Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance 2014 (PPG)

APPRAISAL:

The main considerations in the determination of this application are considered to be: 

i) Principle of the development; 
ii) Design, appearance and landscape impact;
iii) Local amenity and environmental impact;
iv) Flood Risk and drainage; 
v) Highway impacts; and

vi) Impact on users of the public right of way (PRoW).

Page 82



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

i) Principle of the development

The site is within the open countryside, however, the principle of the development aligns with policies 
SP1 and SP9 and paragraph 28 of the NPPF as the new building would support land based activity 
(poultry farming) and the rural economy. The proposed building would allow for a modern and efficient 
expansion of an established poultry operation enabling an increase in on-site capacity and the 
promotion of UK food production whilst adding value through direct and indirect employment. 

ii) Design, appearance and landscape impact

The new building would be located to the north of the existing poultry units in a position that requires 
the prior demolition of a small group of redundant, single storey farm buildings.

The building is of considerable size although within the context of the existing poultry farm business it 
is considered that the scale of the new building would be compatible with the size and form of the row 
of existing units and due to its siting would not appear isolated from the existing agricultural buildings.

The building would extend further east than the existing units and would require the removal of an 
existing stretch of conifer screen planting. The Applicant has provided an amended Proposed Site Plan 
showing an area of replacement planting to screen the east and south ends the buildings and full details 
would be secured by condition should permission be granted. The nearest visual receptors are 
approximately 500m from the site and the proposed planting should retain and enhance the landscaped 
appearance of the farm when viewed from the east.
   
The proposed development also includes the removal of dilapidated and redundant agricultural 
buildings and the construction of the new building on the footprint. The proposed scale, materials and 
colour finishes are standard for these type of poultry buildings and would be sympathetic to the 
character and appearance of the existing farmstead minimising the visual impact within the surrounding 
area. 

The siting and design of the new building is considered acceptable and there would be minimal impact 
upon the open countryside and rural character of the area and the development is considered to be in 
compliance with Policy SP16. 

iii) Local amenity and environmental impact

The operation of the poultry unit would follow the existing arrangements in place for the adjacent units. 
The manure removal process is regulated by an IPPC permit issued by the Environment Agency and 
manure is either retained on the farm for use or exported to neighbouring arable farms. The cleaning 
process involves the use of high pressure hoses and the base of the building would be levelled so that 
waste water runs western out of the doors and towards the concrete pad. The poultry unit would be fan 
ventilated. The waste water from the cleaning process is collected within a containment tank which is 
then removed by a tanker for disposal off site at an appropriate facility. This is controlled by the 
aforementioned Environmental Permit and ensures that there is no contaminated run off. The permit 
also covers emissions to air, water and land, generation of waste, use of raw materials, energy 
efficiency, noise, prevention of accidents and restoration upon closure. It is understood that the 
Applicant is currently seeking a variation of the existing Permit to take account of the additional poultry 
unit. 

In considering air quality and pollution it is important to note that planning and other regulatory regimes 
are separate, but complementary. The planning system controls the development and use of land in the 
public interest and, as stated in paragraphs 120 and 122 of the NPPF, this includes ensuring that new 
development is appropriate for its location taking account the effects (including cumulative effects) of
pollution on health, the natural environment or general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area 
or proposed development to adverse effects from pollution. The focus of the planning system is on 
whether the development itself is an acceptable use of the land and the impacts of those uses, rather than 
any control processes, health and safety issues or emissions themselves where these are subject to 

Page 83



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

approval under other regimes. The NPPF advises that local planning authorities should assume that 
these regimes will operate effectively.

The proposed development, if granted planning permission, would be subject to the controls of the 
IPPC Permit. It is considered that the emissions from the site could be adequately monitored and 
controlled under the environmental permitting regime. The controls exercised under the regulatory 
pollution regime exist to prevent or mitigate harm from development and any grant of planning 
permission for the development would not inhibit the relevant regulators from refusing a permit 
application should they consider it would cause demonstrable harm.

The site occupies a relatively isolated location in relation to sensitive receptors and public vantage 
points. It is not anticipated that this proposed addition to the established poultry farming operation 
would give rise to any unacceptable visual intrusion, pollution or disturbance and as a result there would 
not be an adverse impact upon local amenity or environment in compliance with the relevant part of 
Policy SP20. 

iv) Flood Risk and drainage

The proposed building, concrete apron and associated external structures would all stand outside of 
Flood Zones 2 & 3. At its closest point the proposed building would be approximately 15m from Flood 
Zone 2 and 100m from Flood Zone 3. The intervening land comprises a farm track, an open flat field 
and the internal farm access road. the proposed building would be located outside of the areas of highest 
flood risk and, for flood risk purposes, is classed as a ‘less vulnerable’ use.

In their initial consultation response the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) requested a Flood Risk 
Assessment (FRA). In response, the submitted FRA indicates that the primary risk to the site is from 
overland surface water flooding resulting from the local drainage ditch overtopping the banks during 
periods of excessive rainfall.

The recommended flood risk mitigation is that the floor of the new building is raised to a level of 
approximately 600mm above the existing ground level and external levels around the building re-
graded to shed any overland flood waters away from the building. A condition shall be attached to any 
permission granted to require that the development is undertaken in accordance with the mitigation 
measures set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment. 

It is proposed that surface water would be discharged via soakaway and trenches would run parallel to 
the north and south elevations of the poultry unit. The FRA includes percolation testing which 
determines the appropriate soakaway dimensions and there are no objections from the LLFA subject to 
detailed design. 

The LLFA have confirmed that the submitted FRA demonstrates a reasonable approach of the 
management of surface water on the site. The LLFA request that the detailed design for the foul and 
surface water drainage and SuDs drainage maintenance are secured by condition should permission be 
granted. As a result it is considered that the proposed development would not conflict with the aims of 
Policy SP17.

v) Highway impacts

The proposed expansion of the poultry business would give rise to an increase in HGV movements.  
The LHA have considered the HGV movement figures and based on a 6 day working week anticipate an 
additional HGV visit per day equivalent. In general the HGV movements relate to chick, feed, fuel and 
shavings deliveries and bird, manure and waste water removals. It is acknowledged that due to the 
nature of the operation there are peaks in HGV movements throughout the year. 

The existing access is fit for purpose and provides suitable visibility where it meets the public highway. 
In addition there is sufficient space within the site for the parking and turning of HGVs. The LHA has 
confirmed that there is no evidence of any extra-ordinary damage at the access or the adjacent public 
highway allied with the existing use, and the predicted additional traffic is, on balance, not considered 

Page 84



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

to present any severe detrimental effect to that access or the local highway network.

In considering the cumulative impact the Officer view is that the proposed expansion of the poultry 
operation and associated HGV movements can be satisfactorily accommodated by the local highway 
network and would not have a detrimental impact on road safety in accordance with Policy SP20.

vi) Impact on users of the public right of way (PRoW)

As referred to earlier in the report there are two public footpaths that fall within the application site 
boundary although neither would be directly affected by the new poultry building or associated 
structures. The PRoW routes follow the existing internal access road and pass Beech Tree Cottage but 
do not enter the working farmyard nor do they cross the footprint of the proposed building.  

The internal access road that leads west from the public highway is relatively straight and flat with good 
visibility and verges that allow space for passing. Furthermore the existing poultry operation has 
operated alongside existing public footpaths without conflict between users.  

Whilst the new building would result in an increase in HGV movements to and from the farm it is not 
anticipated that it would give rise to material change in highway safety conditions. There are no 
objections from the LHA and the County PRoW team have recommended that the standard informative 
(that requires that PRoWs are not obstructed) is included on any permission granted. In light of the 
above it is considered that the proposed development would not have a detrimental impact on the 
amenity or safety of users of the PRoWs in accordance with Policy SP20. 

Conclusion 

The principle of the development is in line with national and local planning policy and represents 
development that supports the land- based, rural economy and contributes to UK food production in a 
sustainable manner. There are no objections to the application from consultees or any member of the 
public. The proposed development would not have an unacceptable impact on the open countryside, 
local amenity, flood risk or highway safety and is considered to meet the relevant policy criteria 
outlined within Policies SP1, SP9, SP16, SP17 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and 
the NPPF. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans:

Location Plan, drawing ref. IP/AF/02, dated March 2018.
Proposed Site Plan (including Proposed Tree Planting Belt), drawing ref. IP/AF/03A, dated 
April 2018.
Elevations and Plan, drawing ref. IP/AF/04, dated March 2018.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of a 
landscaping and planting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs and show 
areas to be grass seeded or turfed.  The submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall 
indicate numbers, species, heights on planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including 

Page 85



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

existing items to be retained.  All planting seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above 
scheme shall be carried out during the first planting season following the commencement of 
the development, or such longer period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Any trees or shrubs which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, 
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
written consent to any variation.

Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved.

4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation 
measures set out in Section 6 of the Flood Risk and Drainage Assessment produced by Alan 
Wood & Partners, dated May 2018.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and flood risk.

5 Development shall not commence until a scheme detailing foul and surface water drainage 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
shall detail phasing of the development and phasing of drainage provision, where appropriate. 
Principles of sustainable urban drainage shall be employed wherever possible. The works 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved phasing. No part or phase of the 
development shall be brought into use until the drainage works approved for that part or phase 
has been completed. 

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate and sustainable means of drainage in the 
interests of amenity and flood risk.

6 No development shall take place until a suitable maintenance of the proposed SuDS drainage 
scheme arrangement has been demonstrated to the Local Planning Authority. Details with 
regard to the maintenance and management of the approved scheme to include; drawings 
showing any surface water assets to be vested with the statutory undertaker/highway authority 
and subsequently maintained at their expense, and/or any other arrangements to secure the 
operation of the approved drainage scheme/sustainable urban drainage systems throughout 
the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and to ensure the future maintenance of the 
sustainable drainage system.

INFORMATIVE 

1 No works are to be undertaken which will create an obstruction, either permanent or 
temporary, to the Public Right of Way adjacent to the proposed development. Applicants are 
advised to contact the County Council’s Access and Public Rights of team at County Hall, 
Northallerton via paths@northyorks.gov.uk to obtain up-to-date information regarding the 
line of the route of the way. The applicant should discuss with the Highway Authority any 
proposals for altering the route.

Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

Item Number: 10
Application No: 18/00005/HOUSE
Parish: Cropton Parish Council
Appn. Type: Householder Application
Applicant: Mr David Winterbottom
Proposal: Erection of a detached outbuilding following demolition of existing Dutch 

barn and chicken hut
Location: Moorlands  High Street Cropton Pickering YO18 8HH

Registration Date:  3 January 2018
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  28 February 2018 (Extension of time agreed until 6 June 2018)
Overall Expiry Date:  6 April 2018
Case Officer:  Alan Goforth Ext: 332

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No objection 
Parish Council No response to re-consultation received
Countryside Officer Recommends condition  

Neighbour responses: Mr and Mrs Ellerington, 

SITE:

Moorlands occupies a narrow triangular 0.08ha site on the western side of Cropton. The village of 
Cropton is located 8km north west of Pickering and abuts the southern boundary of the North York 
Moors National Park. Moorlands stands on the southern side of the High Street and vehicular access is 
in the northern boundary which opens into a parking and turning area. Neighbouring properties are 
Haven House to the east and Allerdale and White Cottage to the west. The rear gardens of Moorlands 
and White Cottage historically formed part of an old limestone quarry and the topography is generally 
‘bowl-shaped’ with sections of exposed/partially vegetated stone faces on the boundary.

Moorlands is a detached converted barn that was previously associated with White Cottage to the west. 
The garden area to the rear contains a dilapidated open sided Dutch barn with concrete base and a single 
storey former chicken shed that provide undercover storage space. The boundary with White Cottage 
comprises a part drystone wall and part post and wire fence. 

The new building would be partly within the Development Limits and partly within the Fringe of the 
Moors Area of High Landscape Value.

PROPOSAL:

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a detached outbuilding following demolition of an 
existing Dutch barn and chicken hut.

The proposed outbuilding would be rectangular shaped, orientated north-south adjacent to the boundary 
and would have a covered outdoor area off the east facing elevation. The outbuilding would be 
positioned to the south of the end of the existing dry-stone wall that forms the western boundary of the 
site. The proposed outbuilding would measure 8m in length by 4m in width with a pitched roof that 
would stand 3.25m to the ridge. The eaves height to the rear, western side would be 2m and 2.2m at the 
front, eastern side. The ridgeline would run parallel to the site boundary. 

Page 102

Agenda Item 10



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

The outer walls of the outbuilding would comprise Scandinavian redwood timber boards and the roof 
covering would comprise new and reclaimed red pantiles. The south and west facing elevations would 
be blank whereas there would be windows and a door in the east facing elevation and a single door in 
the north elevation.

The Applicant states that the proposed outbuilding would store a bicycle, canoe, tools, equipment and 
other materials such as wood for the stove in the house. The outdoor covered area would be used for 
hanging out and drying washing and sitting out in a shaded area. A native species hedge would be 
planted along the western boundary to the rear of the proposed outbuilding following the line of the 
existing post and wire fence. 

It should be noted that the planning application initially proposed an outbuilding with dimensions of 
9m by 4m standing to a ridge height of 4.5m with a pitched roof ridgeline perpendicular to the site 
boundary. The outdoor covered area was proposed on the end of the building allowing views onto the 
adjacent garden of White Cottage. It was considered that the scale and design as originally proposed 
would result in an overbearing impact on the neighbouring land with the potential for a loss privacy. In 
light of concerns raised by the occupants of White Cottage the proposed development was amended to 
that described above. 

HISTORY:

09/00714/FUL- Change of use and alteration of barn to form a two bedroom dwelling with attached 
garage to include erection of single storey lean-to extension to west elevation. Approved 15.09.2009.

07/00615/73-Variation of Condition 07 of approval 04/01455/73 dated 17.01.2005 to allow the 
detached outbuildings to be converted into a separate residential dwelling and not tied to White Cottage 
and the outbuilding attached to White Cottage to be an annex of White Cottage. Approved 30.08.2007.

04/01455/73- Renewal of approval 99/00515/FUL dated 08.02.2000 for change of use of barn and 
outbuilding to form two-storey dwelling and cottage. Approved 17.01.2005.

99/00515/FUL-Change of use of barn and outbuilding to form two-storey dwelling and cottage. 
Approved 08.02.2000.

POLICIES:

Under Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 planning authorities are 
required to determine each planning application in accordance with the planning policies that comprise 
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan for the 
determination of this particular application comprises the following:

 The Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy (2013)

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013)

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP13 Landscapes
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP14 Biodiversity
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues

Material Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance 2014 (PPG)

Page 103



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

APPRAISAL:

The main considerations in the determination of this application are considered to be: 

i) Principle of the development;
ii) Design and impact upon the Area of High Landscape Value (AHLV);
iii) Impact upon residential amenity; 
iv) Ecology; and
v) Other matters- Third party comments.

i) Principle of the development

The proposed building would be used for storage and to provide an outdoor covered area and would be 
ancillary to the main dwelling. The covered and secure space to be provided by the outbuilding would 
replace that currently used for storage in the Dutch Barn and former chicken shed which would be 
demolished. It is considered that the principle of the development is acceptable. 

ii) Design and impact upon the Area of High Landscape Value (AHLV)

The proposed location of the outbuilding is dictated by the existing patio area at the rear of the dwelling, 
drive and turning area to the side, the underground package sewage treatment plant and the former 
quarry face that slopes into the garden on the eastern boundary. The Applicant highlights that the 
demolition of the existing buildings/structures and the positioning of the outbuilding on the western 
boundary would open up views southward down the garden from inside the house and external patio 
area. The dwelling has a narrow curtilage (approx. 500m² of outdoor space) and there are limited 
positional options for an outbuilding to serve the property. The amended design has reduced the mass 
of the rear, west elevation and the outbuilding would be orientated to face away from the garden of the 
neighbouring property (White Cottage). 

The outbuilding would also be set back from the public highway at the rear of the site. It would not be 
visible from passing vehicles or pedestrians on the High Street. The north facing elevation would only 
be visible when viewed directly from the access into the site. 

It is considered that due to the narrow confined garden associated with Moorlands any additional built 
development has the potential to visually dominate the limited outdoor areas, particularly when viewed 
from the lower ground to the west. The proposed outbuilding, as amended, is considered to be of a more 
appropriate scale than the existing Dutch Barn, the original use of which was not associated with a 
residential property unlike its adapted use in recent years. The Parish Council have raised no objections 
and have stated that the removal of the old structure may enhance the property. 

The design also incorporates surface water drainage arrangements that involves a soakaway to be 
created to the east of the Dutch Barn (to be demolished) to take rainwater from the proposed outbuilding. 
Once the frame of the Dutch Barn has been removed the existing concrete base would be broken up to 
improve surface water drainage and the rubble used to create the soakaway. 

It is considered that the proposed outbuilding would be appropriate in terms of scale, design and 
orientation. The outbuilding would be ancillary to the residential use and would not significantly detract 
from the character and form of the main dwelling (barn conversion). The proposed outbuilding, whilst 
of a reasonable size, would be subordinate in scale and appearance to the main dwelling and not visually 
intrusive. The final external construction materials and colour finishes for the outbuilding will be 
secured by condition on any permission granted. 

If permission is granted the applicant has agreed to plant a hedgerow along the existing western 
boundary which is currently demarcated by a post and wire fence. The hedgerow planting shall be 
secured by condition and required to be grown to a minimum of 1 metre tall. The native species planting 
would be an improvement on the existing boundary treatment and would soften the appearance of the 
rear elevation of the outbuilding whilst being in keeping with the landscape character.

Page 104



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

The part of the site that falls within the Area of High Landscape Value (AHLV) lies towards the south 
of the plot and incorporates most of the garden area where the outbuilding would be constructed. It is 
considered that the size and external appearance would be sympathetic to the character of the area and 
would not detract from the special landscape quality of the AHLV and the open fields which extend to 
the south.

The scale, siting and design of the proposed outbuilding is considered acceptable and there would be 
minimal impact upon the open countryside and rural character of the area and the development is 
considered to be in compliance with policies SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the Local Plan.

iii) Impact upon residential amenity

The proposed outbuilding would be visible from the outside area to the rear of the adjacent property 
(White Cottage) and also from within the garden/orchard. White Cottage has a substantial 
garden/orchard (approximately 0.16ha) which occupies a lower level in relation to Moorlands to the 
east.

The front of the outbuilding which comprises an outdoor covered area would face east away from the 
White Cottage and would not result in any overlooking or loss of privacy for the occupants of White 
Cottage and, due to its position, the building is likely to improve the levels of privacy currently 
experienced by occupants of both properties. 

The land to the east, at the rear of Haven House, is elevated in relation to the application site and the 
proposed outbuilding would face towards part of the former quarry face and would not have views onto 
the land. It is considered that there would be no overlooking privacy issues in relation to Haven House. 

It is acknowledged that the outbuilding, which has a rear wall 2m high rising to 3.25m at the ridge of 
the roof, could cause a degree of shadowing over the immediate garden area on the eastern side of the 
White Cottage garden in the morning. However, it would not affect the main dwelling which is 
approximately 20m to the north west. Given the proposed size and position any loss of natural daylight 
would be negligible. In considering this matter it is also relevant to note that a boundary fence of no 
higher than 2m in height could be erected along the property boundary as ‘permitted development’ and 
could result in a similar level of shadowing and visual presence. This potential ‘fall back’ position is a 
relevant matter for consideration by the Local Planning Authority. 

The potential impact upon amenity has been taken into account and it is considered that the proposed 
outbuilding would not result in a material impact upon the levels of amenity currently experienced by 
the adjacent property. The proposed outbuilding would not have overbearing presence, cause 
unacceptable loss of light or loss of privacy and complies with the relevant parts of Policy SP20 of the 
Ryedale Plan.

iv) Ecology

In late April 2018 the occupants of the neighbouring White Cottage contacted the Authority to highlight 
that newts (appearing to be Great Crested Newts) had been found in their garden pond within 5 metres 
of the proposed development site. Great Crested Newt (GCN) are a European protected species and are 
protected under Schedule 5 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and Schedule 2 of 
the Conservation (Natural Habitats etc) Regulations 1994. Guidance from Natural England indicates 
that consideration should be given to the possible impact of any development within 500m of a GCN 
location. The Authority requested that the Applicant completed a Great Crested Newt Assessment and 
the document was submitted in May 2018. The Assessment includes results of a search of the existing 
records held by the North and East Yorkshire Ecological Data Centre which indicates no existing 
records for GCN within the search radius of 2km from the Applicant’s property. However, a 
precautionary approach was adopted which assumed that a GCN population could be present.

The site assessment noted that the adjacent pond could provide suitable breeding habitat for newts and 
the surrounding garden associated with White Cottage, which is heavily treed, would provide 
moderately suitable terrestrial habitat. In addition, the drystone wall, which stands between the pond 

Page 105



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

and the boundary of the two properties, would also provide terrestrial and potentially hibernation 
habitat. 

The garden belonging to Moorlands also contains some moderately suitable foraging habitat but no 
suitable breeding habitat. The proposed location of the proposed outbuilding is, however, mown 
grassland and this is sub-optimal foraging habitat for any amphibians. The Dutch barn and chicken shed 
belonging to Moorlands could also provide some suitable foraging and hibernation habitat but the 
occasional disturbance and, in particular, the dry nature of the structures will limit this value and so 
would again be classed as sub-optimal. Elsewhere, however, there is some suitable hibernacula in the 
form of coarse grassland and shrubs etc. 

The Assessment states that the proposed development would have no impact on the GCN breeding 
habitat (pond on neighbouring land). The assessment also highlights that suitable habitat is already close 
to the existing pond and is separated from the proposed development site by a post and wire fence and 
dry-stone wall. This wall would provide further suitable foraging and hibernacula. The mown garden 
of Moorlands is not considered to be optimal foraging habitat. 

However, a potential impact could arise from the removal of the Dutch barn and chicken shed. These 
could provide suitable hibernacula beneath any materials stored in the buildings, although their potential 
value is reduced by its dry nature which is less suitable for amphibians and the need for GCN to first 
migrate across sub optimal habitat. The Assessment concludes that “Some very small loss of sub-
optimal forage habitat is possible and some limited loss of sub-optimal hibernacula is possible from 
non licensable operations like moving log piles. These losses however, in relation to the continued 
presence of more suitable habitat in the vicinity of the pond, which will not be affected, are not 
considered to pose a threat to any possible Great Crested Newt population. A protected species licence 
from Natural England is therefore not considered necessary”.

The Assessment includes a working method statement for construction/demolition setting out 
mitigation measures to ensure that there is no impact on GCN. This includes the planting of a boundary 
hedgerow and creation of two hibernacula (from stone, brick and brash) prior to the commencement of 
construction/demolition work. It also requires that construction work is undertaken between October 
and March during the hibernation season.

The Council’s Countryside Specialist has considered the Assessment and has raised no objections 
subject to a condition requiring that works are undertaken in accordance with the proposed method 
statement and mitigation measures. Due to the age of the Dutch Barn and the proposed demolition work 
there is also potential for impact upon bats. Previous bat surveys found no evidence of a bat roost or bat 
activity within the adjacent barn building prior to conversion but noted that bats were active in the area. 
It is, therefore, considered appropriate to attach an informative to ensure the Applicant complies with 
the relevant legalisation.  

In light of the above it is considered that the proposed development would not have an adverse effect 
on any site or species protected under international or national legislation and is in accordance with 
national policy contained in paragraph 118 of the NPPF and Policy SP13 of the Local Plan. 

v) Other matters- Third Party comments

The occupants of White Cottage raised objections/concerns in relation the proposed development (as 
amended). The representation received contains a summary of their objections as follows:-

 The outbuilding is disproportionate and out of scale with the location;
 The proposed location is inappropriate, impractical and avoidable. It is very close to the 

property boundary and, in part, will disrupt soakaways that are there;
 The reduction of light and shade cast that would result from the proposed location and size of 

the outbuilding would prove detrimental to its surroundings and our amenity;
 It would exacerbate drainage in the area of rainwater and run off in an already compromised 

area;

Page 106



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

 The materials that it would be made from are not in keeping with the area and this building 
will be highly visible;

 It will have a negative impact on the ecology of the area;
 It is a potential fire hazard;
 Despite numerous requests, the statement of use has not been forthcoming; and
 It will have negative effects on the character of the landscape area, an Area of High Landscape 

Value.

It is considered that the material planning issues raised have been addressed in the report above. The 
remaining concern that identifies the proposed outbuilding as a potential fire hazard is noted. However, 
planning control does not include powers to assess the fire safety of building materials nor most 
elements of building design. Fire safety is a matter for Building Control and the Fire and Rescue Service 
and fire precautions covered by building regulations are not part of material planning considerations on 
which planning decisions must be based. 

Conclusion 

The proposed development as amended would not have an unacceptable impact on the locally valued 
open countryside, local amenity or protected species and is considered to meet the relevant policy 
criteria outlined within Policies SP13, SP14, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 
and the NPPF. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans:

Proposed Outbuilding at Moorlands, dated 20.03.18
Proposed Garden Shed Location, dated 20.03.18

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 
be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of Policy 
SP16 of the Local Plan Strategy.

4 A scheme of hedgerow planting alongside the existing post and wire fence on the western 
boundary of the site consisting of plants capable of growth to a minimum height of 1 metre; 
shall be carried out in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority before any work is commenced.  The planting shall be carried 
out prior to any construction/demolition work and thereafter be maintained for a period of 5 
years to the reasonable satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  The maintenance shall 
include the replacement of any plants that die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased in the next planting season with others of similar size and species unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality.

Page 107



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

5 All ecological measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
contained within Sections 13-16 of the Great Crested Newt Assessment produced by Robert 
Missin and received on 23 May 2018.

Reason: To ensure the development does not impact upon protected species. 

INFORMATIVE

During demolition work special care must be taken to ensure that any bats present are not 
injured or killed. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or 
during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further 
advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
and applies to whoever carries out the work. 

Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

Item Number: 11
Application No: 18/00363/HOUSE
Parish: Westow Parish Council
Appn. Type: Householder Application
Applicant: Mr Philip Dibbs
Proposal: Demolition of existing boundary wall, fence and access gates including gate 

posts and erection of replacement stone walling, posts and painted timber 
pedestrian and vehicular gates (revised details to refusal 17/01437/HOUSE 
dated 18.01.2018)

Location: North Wing Firby Hall Village Streets Firby Malton North Yorkshire YO60 
7LH

Registration Date:   23 April 2018
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  18 June 2018 
Overall Expiry Date:  20 May 2018
Case Officer:  Emma Woodland Ext: 324

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council Concerns 
Highways North Yorkshire No objection 
Public Rights Of Way Recommend informative 

Neighbour responses:

SITE:

Firby Hall is located on a minor no through road set back from the road down a drive. The property is 
subdivided into flats and the North Wing is located in the former service wing of the Hall. 

PROPOSAL:

The application is a revised scheme following a previous refusal to erect a stone wall, fence and access 
gate to the front of North Wing.

POLICY:

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP12 Heritage
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues
National Planning Policy Framework

RELEVANT SITE HISTORY:

17/01266/LBC-Demolition of existing boundary wall, fence and access gates including gate posts and 
erection of replacement stone walling, posts and painted timber pedestrian and vehicular gates.- 
Refused

17/01437/HOUSE-Demolition of existing boundary wall, fence and access gates including gate posts 
and erection of replacement stone walling, posts and painted timber pedestrian and vehicular gates- 
Refused

Page 114

Agenda Item 11



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

APPRAISAL:

Firby Hall is a Grade II listed building dating from the late 18th -early 19th century with later additions 
and alterations. As a Grade II listed building, the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas act) 
1990 states that special regard should be given to the preservation of the listed building. 

The hall is a substantial house constructed from stone with a Westmorland slate roof. It is now 
subdivided into flats. It has a substantial 5 bay main range with former service accommodation to the 
north.   The house displays a flat, predominantly unornamented principle facade excepting the strong 
architectural feature of an early 20th century porch with steps and a shell hood which projects beyond 
the front of the listed building. This porch contributes to the architecture of the listed building. 

The main consideration with this application are:

 Heritage Issues
 Highway Safety Issues

The location of the proposal is at the north wing of Firby Hall.  This part of Firby Hall can be 
characterised as the former service accommodation to the hall which has recently undergone renovation 
and extension.  It is considered that the renovation and extension respects the character of the listed 
building and maintains the clear legible hierarchy between the formal higher status principle elements 
and the former service accommodation. At present the north wing is a more modest recessive element of 
the building when seen as a whole and especially when seen from the front facade. 

This proposal follows a refused Householder and Listed Building application in 2017. The works 
detailed in the former application had already commenced and have since ceased on site. The proposals 
were previously refused as it was considered that they did not preserve the special interest of the listed 
building. It was considered that the proposal would present a visual distraction that would compete with 
the prominence of the projecting shell porch which was identified as a feature which contributed to the 
special interest of the listed building. The design of the proposal remains that same, the position of the 
springing point of the wall has been revised.  A Heritage Statement undertaken by a qualified heritage 
professional accompanying this application finds that the proposal will not result in any harm to the 
listed building for the following reasons: 

No historic fabric will be lost or altered
The proposals are fully reversible
The proposed stone wall will attach to the 20th century rendered extension
It will maintain the prominence of the shell porch and steps
The design details harmonise with the recently approved scheme

The design has been amended to re-locate the springing point of the wall further away from the shell 
porch closer to the north of the site towards the 20th century rendered extension. This moves the wall c. 
3.20 metres further away from the principal historic elevation of the listed building. The proposed stone 
boundary wall is c. 1.30 metres high and projects c. 3.5 metres out from the front façade of the listed 
building. It has a length of c. 2.5 metres (reduced from c.5.6 metres) and then presents a timber 
pedestrian gate with a set of timber vehicle gates beyond that finished by a masonry gate pier. The 
vestigial remains of a small section of mid-20th century stone wall which formed porch steps is 
annotated on the drawings as 'to be removed'. It is apparent however from my site visit that this has 
already taken place, which is considered to be acceptable.  The proposed plans detail an 'existing' 
timber gate and fence which was positioned c. 3.5 metres further north of this application. These 
projected c. 3.8 metres from the face of the listed building.  It was also apparent from my site visit that 
these have been removed which is considered to be acceptable. 

It is considered that this application addresses a previous Officer objection regarding the visually 
distracting element of the wall. The wall is moved c. 3.3 m further from the principal elevation and is 
now located at a more natural point of the junction between 2 different architectural elements of the 
building. In addition, placing the stone wall in the foreground of the later rendered elevation will help to 

Page 115



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

visually knit the rendered elevation and soften its effect.   It is considered that the removal of the 
existing walling of the former porch steps is an enhancement.  

Material planning concerns have been expressed by the Parish Council regarding the listed building and 
that the proposed works will be aesthetically detrimental to its appearance. Policy SP20 requires that 
new development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future occupants, 
the users or occupants of neighbouring land or the wider community by virtue of its design, use, 
location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. 

The Parish Council also have concerns regarding movement of vehicles in regard to highway safety 
however North Yorkshire County Highways have not objected to the application subject to their being 
no obstruction to the Public Right of Way. The proposal therefore is considered to comply with Policy 
SP20. Other matters raised concern property law which is not a consideration for the Local Planning 
Authority.  

It is considered that the submitted Heritage Statement draws a conclusion that is also supported by 
Officers. It is considered that this proposal overcomes previous Officer concern regarding the visual 
distraction which would result from the scheme. The position of the wall further away from the 
principal façade of the listed building now located at a natural junction between 2 elements of the 
building is considered to mitigate previous concerns. In addition, the removal of the former porch steps 
walling is considered to be an enhancement. The use of stone in the foreground of the rendered section 
is considered to visually soften this change of materials and help knit in the rendered section. The 
proposal therefore is considered to preserve the special interest of the listed building. The application 
has been carefully considered by Officers and is considered to comply with Policy SP12 and SP20 and 
the NPPF.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s): 1193_AR50_02 Rev A.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 
construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre square 
free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. The 
panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed

Reason: To preserve the listed building

INFORMATIVE(S)

1 No works are to be undertaken which will create an obstruction, either permanent or 
temporary, to the Public Right of Way adjacent to the proposed development.

Applicants are advised to contact the County Council's Access and Public Rights of Way 
Manager at County Hall, Northallerton on 0845 8727374 to obtain up-to-date information 
regarding the line of the route of the way.  The applicant should discuss with the Highway 
Authority any proposals for altering the route.

Page 116



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

Item Number: 12
Application No: 18/00314/LBC
Parish: Westow Parish Council
Appn. Type: Listed Building Consent
Applicant: Mr Philip Dibbs
Proposal: Demolition of existing boundary wall, fence and access gates including gate 

posts and erection of replacement stone walling, posts and painted timber 
pedestrian and vehicular gates (revised details to refusal 17/01266/LBC 
dated 14.12.2017)

Location: North Wing Firby Hall Village Streets Firby Malton YO60 7LH

Registration Date:  23 April 2018
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  18 June 2018 
Overall Expiry Date:  23 May 2018
Case Officer:  Emma Woodland Ext: 324

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council Concerns
Public Rights Of Way Recommend Informative 

Neighbour responses:

SITE:

Firby hall is a Grade II listed building located on a minor no through road set back from the road down 
a drive. The property is a substantial stone building now subdivided into flats. The development site 
(north wing) is located in the former service wing of the Hall.

PROPOSAL:

The application is a revised scheme following a previous refusal to erect a stone wall, timber fence and 
access gate to the front of North Wing.

POLICY:

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP12 Heritage
National Planning Policy Framework

RELEVANT SITE HISTORY:

17/01266/LBC-Demolition of existing boundary wall, fence and access gates including gate posts and 
erection of replacement stone walling, posts and painted timber pedestrian and vehicular gates.- 
Refused

17/01437/HOUSE-Demolition of existing boundary wall, fence and access gates including gate posts 
and erection of replacement stone walling, posts and painted timber pedestrian and vehicular gates- 
Refused

APPRAISAL:

Firby Hall is a Grade II listed building dating from the late 18th -early 19th century with later additions 
and alterations. As a Grade II listed building, the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas act) 
1990 states that special regard should be given to the preservation of the listed building. 

Page 129

Agenda Item 12



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

The hall is a substantial house constructed from stone with a Westmorland slate roof. It is now 
subdivided into flats. It has a substantial 5 bay main range with former service accommodation to the 
north.   The house displays a flat, predominantly unornamented principle facade excepting the strong 
architectural feature of an early 20th century porch with steps and a shell hood which projects beyond 
the front of the listed building. This porch contributes to the architecture of the listed building.
 
The main consideration with this application are:

 Whether the proposal preserves the special interest of the listed building.

The location of the proposal is at the north wing of Firby Hall.  This part of Firby Hall can be 
characterised as the former service accommodation to the hall which has recently undergone renovation 
and extension.  It is considered that the renovation and extension respects the character of the listed 
building and maintains the clear legible hierarchy between the formal higher status principle elements 
and the former service accommodation. At present the north wing is a more modest recessive element of 
the building when seen as a whole and especially when seen from the front facade.
 
This proposal follows a refused Householder and Listed Building application in 2017. The works 
detailed in the former application had already commenced and have since ceased on site. The proposals 
were previously refused as it was considered that they did not preserve the special interest of the listed 
building. It was considered that the proposal would present a visual distraction that would compete with 
the prominence of the projecting shell porch which was identified as a feature which contributed to the 
special interest of the listed building. Whilst the design of the proposal remains the same, the position of 
the 'springing point' of the wall has been revised.  A Heritage Statement undertaken by a qualified 
heritage professional accompanying this application finds that the proposal will not result in any harm 
to the listed building for the following reasons:

No historic fabric will be lost or altered
The proposals are fully reversible
The proposed stone wall will attach to the 20th century rendered extension
It will maintain the prominence of the shell porch and steps
The design details harmonise with the recently approved scheme

The design has been amended to re-locate the 'springing point' of the wall further away from the shell 
porch closer to the north of the site towards the 20th century rendered extension. This moves the wall c. 
3.20 metres further away from the principal historic elevation of the listed building. The proposed stone 
boundary wall is c. 1.30 metres high and projects c. 3.5 metres out from the front façade of the listed 
building. It has a length of c. 2.5 metres (reduced from c.5.6 metres) and then presents a timber 
pedestrian gate with a set of timber vehicle gates beyond that finished by a masonry gate pier. The 
vestigial remains of a small section of mid-20th century stone wall which formed porch steps is 
annotated on the drawings as 'to be removed'. It is apparent however from my site visit that this has 
already taken place, which is considered to be acceptable.  The proposed plans detail an 'existing' 
timber gate and fence which was positioned c. 3.5 metres further north of this application. These 
projected c. 3.8 metres from the face of the listed building.  It was also apparent from my site visit that 
these have been removed which is also considered to be acceptable. 

It is considered that this application addresses a previous Officer objection regarding the visually 
distracting element of the wall. The wall is moved c. 3.3 metres further from the principal elevation and 
is now located at a more natural point of the junction between 2 different architectural elements of the 
building. In addition, placing the stone wall in the foreground of the later rendered elevation will help to 
visually knit the rendered elevation and soften its effect.   It is considered that the removal of the 
existing walling of the former porch steps is an enhancement.  

Material planning concerns have been expressed by the Parish Council expressing the views that the 
proposed works would be aesthetically detrimental to its appearance. 

Page 130



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

It is considered that the submitted Heritage Statement draws a conclusion that is also supported by 
Officers. It is considered that this proposal overcomes previous Officer concern regarding the visual 
distraction which would result from the development. The position of the wall further away from the 
principal façade of the listed building (now located at a natural junction between 2 differing elements of 
the building) is considered to mitigate previous concerns. In addition, the removal of the former porch 
steps walling is considered to be an enhancement. The use of stone in the foreground of the rendered 
section is considered to visually soften this change of materials and it helps to 'knit in' the rendered 
section. The proposal therefore is considered to preserve the special interest of the listed building. The 
application has been carefully considered by Officers and is considered to comply with Policy SP12 and 
the NPPF.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 18(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s): 1193_AR50_02_A.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 
construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre square 
free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. The 
panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed.

Reason: To preserve the listed building.

Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

Item Number: 13
Application No: 18/00122/FUL
Parish: Pickering Town Council
Appn. Type: Full Application
Applicant: Mr David Morrison
Proposal: Change of use, alteration and extension of former hotel to form a terrace of 

3no. 2 bedroom dwellings, erection of 3no. garden sheds/cycle stores and 
formation of 4no. parking spaces with turning area following demolition of 
existing side and rear extensions, together with erection of a detached 4 
bedroom dwelling, attached 2 bay garage and replacement of existing front 
boundary treatments with 1.2m high metal fence and pedestrian gate.

Location: Royal Oak Hotel 131 Eastgate Pickering YO18 7DW

Registration Date:  27 February 2018
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  24 April 2018 
Overall Expiry Date:  22 May 2018
Case Officer:  Emma Woodland Ext: 324

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council Supports change of use to a terrace of dwellings, concerns 
regarding the new build to the rear. 

Highways North Yorkshire Recommends condition 
Parish Council No objection 

Neighbour responses: Mrs Jean Scaling, Mrs Anne Wright, Mrs Anne Wright, 
Mrs R Wood, Miss Frances Wright, Miss Frances Wright, 

SITE:

The Royal Oak is located within the Pickering conservation area and a number of Grade II listed 
buildings are located within close proximity to the development site, the most prominent of which is the 
Grade II listed Eastgate House immediately adjacent to the west. As such, Ryedale District Council has 
a statutory duty to have special regard for the preservation of the setting of the listed building and for the 
preservation or enhancement of the conservation area.  

The Royal Oak is a prominent building located on the south side of Eastgate hard up to the edge of the 
pavement. The building was formerly a pub/hotel which has been closed since 2016. The property is 
located within the Pickering Town Centre Commercial Limits and within the Development Limit for 
the town. A vehicular entrance which served the pub carpark is located off Outgang Road. The building 
is of traditional construction with a number of additions and extensions of varying quality.  To the east 
of the site is a large industrial carpet warehouse which presents a large blank side elevation. 

PROPOSAL: 

The application seeks change of use of the Royal Oak pub into a 2 bedroom dwelling including 
demolition of extensions and erection of 2 attached 2 bedroom cottages fronting Eastgate. A new 4 
bedroom detached dwelling is also proposed to the south of the pub within the former carpark/garden 
with an attached garage. The scheme has been revised by negotiation to reduce the size of the detached 
4 bedroom dwelling and revise the design to address neighbour concerns regarding size and position of 
windows.

Page 141

Agenda Item 13



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

RELEVANT PROPERTY HISTORY: 

There is no relevant site history 

POLICY:

SP1- General Location of Dev and Settlement Hierarchy
SP2- Delivery and Distribution of New Housing
SP11- Community Facilities and Services
SP12- Heritage
SP16- Design
SP20- Generic Development Management Issues
SP22- Planning Obligations, Developed Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy

APPRAISAL:

The proposal seeks to demolish parts of the former pub, erect 2 cottages and convert the pub into a 
residential unit. A new detached 4 bedroom house is proposed in the former pub garden/car park.

The main issues for consideration are:

 Principle of the development 
 Heritage Issues
 Closure/ change of use of the public house
 Neighbour Amenity
 Other Matters

Principle of the development 

Following negotiation with Officers revised drawings of the detached dwelling to the south of the site 
have been submitted reducing the size of the dwelling and altering the design. 

In terms of the principle of new dwellings, Pickering is a settlement which is identified as a Local 
Service Centre where residential development is supported in principle and as such the development 
complies with Policy SP1. The site is also within the development limits and as such the proposal 
complies with Policy SP2.

Heritage Issues
 
The proposed demolition of later extensions to the pub are considered to be acceptable as they are of 
low quality and do not contribute to the character of the conservation area. The re-modelling of the 
historic pub building to include sympathetic new windows and chimneys is considered to enhance the 
character of the conservation area and setting of the listed building.  The erection of 2 attached cottages 
to the east of the former pub is considered to enhance the character of the conservation area as they have 
been designed in a modest vernacular idiom which reflects the surroundings. 

As the site is within the Pickering conservation area and adjacent to a listed building Policy SP12 
requires that designated historic assets will be preserved and where appropriate enhanced. The revised 
drawings relate to the detached 4 bedroom dwelling proposed to be located in the former pub garden 
and car-park. Revisions have been sought to reduce the size of the dwelling to better relate to its context. 
The detached 4 bedroom house has been designed to relate to the burgage plot and reflect the position 
and design of a former outbuilding. This is considered to be an appropriate form of development in the 
conservation area and will not have an adverse effect of the setting of the adjacent listed building. The 
proposal is considered to enhance the Pickering conservation area by the sensitive development to the 
front of the site. The cottage style extensions are considered to be sympathetic to the host building and 
the detached new house is considered to be well integrated into its surroundings and as such complies 
with Policies SP12 and SP16 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy.  

Page 142



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

Closure/ change of use of the public house

Policy SP11 relating to community facilities requires an applicant to demonstrate that there is no longer 
a need for the facility or that suitable alternatives exist.  According to the submission documents, the 
pub has been closed as an operating business since August 2016. It states there are 13 other pubs/ 
drinking establishments located within Pickering Town centre and that the property was offered for sale 
in 2011 at which time it failed to generate interest. In 2017 the pub was put out to public auction but 
received no bids.  The Town Council have not objected to the closure of the pub and have indeed 
supported the proposal that the Royal Oak is re-developed into a terrace of dwellings. The submission 
documents are considered by Officers to satisfy the provisions of Policy SP11. The application has 
however, been brought before Planning Committee because a local resident had objected to the closure 
of the pub. 

Neighbouring amenity 

The design and scale of the detached 4 bedroom house has been revised to address concerns regarding 
amenity and overlooking of neighbours to the west of the site and concerns regarding the size of the 
detached dwelling. The previous proposal had a ridge height of c.9.4m the revised scheme is c.7.7m. 
The previous scheme was c. 23.6m long with a detached double garage, the revised scheme is c.17.2m 
long with an additional attached garage of c.6m long. The design of the dwelling has also been revised 
to overcome overlooking concerns to delete windows and reposition garages away from shared 
boundaries. Due to its reduced size, and more sensitive position and size of windows it is now 
considered that the proposal will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future 
occupiers or the users or occupants of neighbouring land and as such complies with Policy SP20.  
Neighbour objections to the previous scheme have been addressed and consultation responses from 2 
neighbours on the amended scheme are positive. The Town Council also has no objections to the 
revised scheme. The proposal is considered to satisfy Policy SP20.

Other Matters

The Local Highway Authority has no objection to the proposed development subject to the conditions 
listed below.

This application has been carefully considered by Officers and is considered to comply with Policies 
SP1, 2, 11, 12, 16 and 20. The development will be liable for Community Infrastructure Levy.  
   

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: Drawing Nos: 2351:7 rev B, 2351:8 rev A, 2351:6 rev B, 2351:4, 2351:6, 
2351:5, 2351:9, 2351:11

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Page 143



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to be 
used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To preserve the conservation area

4 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 
construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre square 
free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. The 
panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed

Reason: To preserve the conservation area

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town & Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or 
amending that Order) development of the following classes shall not be undertaken other than 
as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority following a specific 
application in that respect:

Class A: Enlargement, improvement or alteration of a dwellinghouse

Class B: Roof alteration to enlarge a dwellinghouse

Class C: Any other alteration to the roof of a dwellinghouse

Class D: Erection or construction of a domestic external porch

Class E: Provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of any building or enclosure, 
swimming or other pool required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of a dwellinghouse 
or the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of such a building or enclosure

Class G: The erection or provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of a container for 
the storage of oil for domestic heating

Glass H: Installation, alteration or replacement of a satellite antenna on a dwellinghouse or 
within its curtilage.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the areas is not prejudiced by the introduction of 
unacceptable materials and/or structure(s).

6 Notwithstanding submitted details, details of all windows, doors and garage doors, including 
means of opening, depth of reveal and external finish at 1:10 scale including cross sections 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure an appropriate appearance and to comply with the requirements of Policy 
H13 (i) of the Ryedale Local Plan.

7 The developer shall prepare on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a 
one metre square sample of the finished pointed stone following the removal of the render on 
the former pub building. 

Reason: To preserve the conservation area.

Page 144



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

8 No dwelling shall be occupied until the related parking facilities have been constructed in 
accordance with the approved drawing 2351:8 rev a.  Once created, these parking areas shall 
be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all times.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 and to provide for adequate and satisfactory 
provision of off-street accommodation for vehicles in the interests of safety and the general 
amenity of the development.

9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 or any subsequent Order, the garage(s) shall not be converted into 
domestic accommodation without the granting of an appropriate planning permission.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 and to ensure the retention of adequate and 
satisfactory provision of off-street accommodation for vehicles generated by occupiers of the 
dwelling and visitors to it, in the interest of safety and the general amenity of the development.

10 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 
site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on 
public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority.  These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where 
considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority.  These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 
material in connection with the construction commences on the site, and be kept available and 
in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in consultation 
with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 and to ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited 
on the carriageway in the interests of highway safety.

11 Unless approved otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 
establishment on a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of 
material in connection with the construction of the site, until proposals have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of:

(i) on-site parking capable of accommodating all staff and sub-contractors vehicles clear of 
the public highway

(ii) on-site materials storage area capable of accommodating all materials required for the 
operation of the site.

The approved areas shall be kept available for their intended use at all times that construction 
works are in operation.  No vehicles associated with on-site construction works shall be 
parked on the public highway or outside the application site.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 and to provide for appropriate on-site vehicle 
parking and the storage facilities, in the interests of highway safety and the general amenity of 
the area.

12 All doors and windows on elevations of the building(s) adjacent to the existing and/or 
proposed highway shall be constructed and installed, such that from the level of the adjacent 
highway for a height of 2.4 metres they do not open over the public highway, and above 2.4 
metres no part of an open door or window shall come within 0.5 metres of the carriageway.  
Any future replacement doors and windows shall also comply with this requirement.

Reason: In accordance with Policy 20 and to protect pedestrians and other highway users.

Page 145



PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 June 2018

INFORMATIVE(S)

1 You are advised that this is a development that would be liable for to pay a Community 
Infrastructure Levy Charge

2 Works to the Eastgate frontage of the existing building may well require a hoarding and/or 
scaffolding to be erected and an appropriate licence must be obtained from the local highway 
authority in advance of commencement of such works. Contact www.northyorks.gov.uk

Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS

25th May 2018 

1.
Application No: 17/01414/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Rillington Parish Council
Applicant: Paul Smith
Location: The Church Rooms High Street Rillington Malton North Yorkshire  
Proposal: Replacement of timber single glazed windows with UPVC double glazed windows 

and replacement UPVC rear door.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

2.
Application No: 17/01448/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Terrington Parish Council
Applicant: Ms Anthea Morshead
Location: Almond Cottage  Flat Top Farm Road Terrington Malton YO60 6PA
Proposal: Erection of first floor extension to the rear elevation with Juliet balcony.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

3.
Application No: 17/01462/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Burythorpe Parish Council
Applicant: Mrs Joyce Abbott
Location: Grange Farm Cottage  Langton To Eddlethorpe Hall Langton YO17 9QS
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension together with demolition of garage to form rear 

access and erection of roadside walls and gates
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

4.
Application No: 18/00028/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Luttons Parish Council
Applicant: V Stubbings & Son (Mr Stubbings)
Location: Land North Of Manor House Long Hill Helperthorpe Malton North Yorkshire 
Proposal: Erection of an above-ground slurry store.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

5.
Application No: 18/00043/ADV Decision:  Approval
Parish: Malton Town Council
Applicant: Wm Morrison Supermarkets PLC
Location: Wm Morrisons  Castlegate Malton YO17 7DT
Proposal: Installation of internally illuminated fascia sign to front entrance of shop, externally 

illuminated fascia sign to side elevation and free-standing externally illuminated sign 
to front vehicular entrance - all to replace existing signage

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

6.
Application No: 18/00088/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Smith
Location: 2 Woodend Cottages  Ashbank Lane High Stittenham Malton YO60 7TW
Proposal: Erection of a two storey side and rear extension following demolition of existing 

attached garage together with erection of a detached double garage with workshop
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Page 184

Agenda Item 15



7.
Application No: 18/00106/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Norton Town Council
Applicant: Mr Tim Fitzgerald
Location: Norton Grange  55 Park Road Norton Malton YO17 9EA
Proposal: Erection of a three bedroom self-contained residential annex following demolition of 

existing stables and garden store
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

8.
Application No: 18/00147/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Norton Town Council
Applicant: Miss Samantha Swift
Location: 20 Farm View Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9BF
Proposal: Erection of two storey rear extension with additional domestic living space above.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

9.
Application No: 18/00172/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Norton Town Council
Applicant: Mr Alastair Dukes
Location: Paddock View  51 Park Road Norton Malton YO17 9EA
Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension following demolition of existing attached 

garage.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

10.
Application No: 18/00173/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Marishes Parish Meeting
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Morley
Location: Moor Close Farm  Thornton Lane High Marishes Malton YO17 6UH
Proposal: Change of use, alteration and extension of agricultural building to form a self-

catering bunk barn following demolition of an existing steel framed Dutch barn.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

11.
Application No: 18/00176/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Norton Town Council
Applicant: Mr Richard Burley
Location: 7 Beck Mill Close Norton Malton YO17 9PD
Proposal: Erection of detached single garage.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

12.
Application No: 18/00177/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Whitwell-on-the-Hill Parish Council
Applicant: Mr Richard Hearn
Location: Inntravel  Mains Lane Whitwell On The Hill Malton YO60 7JU
Proposal: Rebuilding of existing barn structure (Block 3) and link extension to a two storey 

level for use as additional office space, use of Block 4 for storage and workshop 
space and extension of existing car parking areas

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

13.
Application No: 18/00191/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Norton Town Council
Applicant: R & S Shields-Rex
Location: 10 Brindle Way Norton Malton YO17 8BA
Proposal: Conversion and alteration of existing detached garage and garden room to form 

additional domestic accommodation.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________Page 185



14.
Application No: 18/00203/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Howsham Parish Meeting
Applicant: Derwent Court Management Company Ltd
Location: Derwent Court Village Street Howsham Malton North Yorkshire 
Proposal: Installation of above ground oil tank with screening.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

15.
Application No: 18/00215/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Nawton Parish Council
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Agar
Location: The Oaks Common Lane Wombleton Kirkbymoorside North Yorkshire YO62 7RY
Proposal: External alterations to include enclosure of existing open porch in stone, installation 

of stone skin to south elevation to include fitting of sandstone heads and cills to 
windows, removal of brick buttresses and re-rendering of remaining elevations

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

16.
Application No: 18/00217/TPO Decision:  Refusal
Parish: Brawby Parish Meeting
Applicant: Mr Maurice Wear
Location: Willow Bank Brawby Lane Brawby Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6PX
Proposal: Fell ash tree T1
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

17.
Application No: 18/00221/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Westow Parish Council
Applicant: Mr Ivan Knapton
Location: Low Penhowe Farm Penhowe Lane Burythorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9LU
Proposal: Erection of outbuilding for vehicle parking and housing of existing bio mass heating 

container
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

18.
Application No: 18/00218/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Gate Helmsley Parish Council
Applicant: Mr Patrick Waldon
Location: Stamford Bridge Hall York Road Stamford Bridge YO41 1AX
Proposal: Formation of an access for agricultural vehicles from the A166
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

19.
Application No: 18/00222/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council
Applicant: Mr Thomas Souter
Location: Redcar House 61 West End Kirkbymoorside North Yorkshire YO62 6AD
Proposal: Replacement of front entrance door.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

20.
Application No: 18/00229/GPAGB Decision:  Prior Approval Granted
Parish: Pockley Parish Council
Applicant: Wytherstone Farms
Location: Middle Farm Main Street Pockley Helmsley North Yorkshire YO62 7TE
Proposal: Change of use of agricultural buildings to form a 3 bedroom dwelling and detached 

annex with additional domestic accommodation (Use Class C3).
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Page 186



21.
Application No: 18/00234/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Helmsley Town Council
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Mark Chetwyn-Talbot
Location: Tillyer 2 Sawmill Lane Helmsley North Yorkshire YO62 5DQ
Proposal: Erection of front entrance porch and rear conservatory following demolition of 

existing porch and conservatory, replacement of windows and doors to include 
installation of dormer windows and rooflights to north and south roofslopes to allow 
formation of additional domestic living space, erection of detached double garage 
and alterations to existing access and landscaping.

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

22.
Application No: 18/00250/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Pickering Town Council
Applicant: Mr And Mrs J Harrison
Location: 24 Hallgarth Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AW
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

23.
Application No: 18/00251/LBC Decision:  Approval
Parish: Pickering Town Council
Applicant: Mr And Mrs J Harrison
Location: 24 Hallgarth Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AW
Proposal: Internal and external alterations to include erection of single storey rear extension.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

24.
Application No: 18/00255/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Pickering Town Council
Applicant: Mrs Marion Copland
Location: 32 Ingsgarth Pickering YO18 8DA
Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension to form a 2 bedroom self-contained annex.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

25.
Application No: 18/00258/ADV Decision:  Approval
Parish: Yedingham Parish Council
Applicant: Punch Partnerships LTD
Location: Providence Inn  Main Street Yedingham Malton YO17 8SL
Proposal: Display of lettering and amenity board to north elevation, hanging sign, amenity 

board, lettering, menu board and lettering and poster frame to south elevation 
together with installation of 9no. low energy LED floodlights to north, east and south 
elevations.

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

26.
Application No: 18/00259/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Malton Town Council
Applicant: The Camphill Village Trust Ltd
Location: Saville House 9 Saville Street Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7LL
Proposal: Alteration and extension to include erection of single storey rear and side extension 

together with formation of opening in gable at ground floor level to allow installation 
of a window at ground floor level

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Page 187



27.
Application No: 18/00263/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Norton Town Council
Applicant: Mr N Dukes
Location: 11 Westfield Avenue Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8DN
Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey rear extension.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

28.
Application No: 18/00267/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Pickering Town Council
Applicant: Mrs Barbara Bowley
Location: Wold View  35 Ruffa Lane Pickering YO18 7HN
Proposal: Replacement of part of existing rear extension roof
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

29.
Application No: 18/00268/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Norton Town Council
Applicant: Mr Shaun Blenkin
Location: 44 St Peters Crescent Norton Malton YO17 9AN
Proposal: Erection of single storey side extension and part single/part two storey rear extension 

following demolition of existing carport.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

30.
Application No: 18/00270/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council
Applicant: Mr J Nellis
Location: 16 - 20 Dale Road Sheriff Hutton Malton North Yorkshire YO60 6RZ
Proposal: Erection of internal divisions to create 3no. industrial units and 1no. office unit 

together with installation of 4no. windows to west elevation
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

31.
Application No: 18/00274/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish
Applicant: Mrs E Booth
Location: Cottage Leas Hotel Middleton Lane Middleton Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 

8PN 
Proposal: Erection of a general purpose agricultural building for storage of equipment and 

machinery and the housing of livestock.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

32.
Application No: 18/00276/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Wombleton Parish Council
Applicant: V Project Management (Mr Carter)
Location: Ivy Cottage  Main Street Wombleton Kirkbymoorside YO62 7RW
Proposal: Erection of a part two storey/part single storey rear extension following demolition 

of the existing single storey rear extension
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

33.
Application No: 18/00285/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Edstone Parish Meeting
Applicant: Mr Simon Cooper
Location: The Grey Horse Wapping Lane Great Edstone Kirkbymoorside North Yorkshire 

YO62 6PD
Proposal: Siting of a domestic oil tank to replace existing tank.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________Page 188



34.
Application No: 18/00291/ADV Decision:  Approval
Parish: Wilton Parish Council
Applicant: Mr R Lunn
Location: Land West Of Wilton Village Wilton Pickering North Yorkshire  
Proposal: Display of 'V Board' style timber advance sign.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

35.
Application No: 18/00297/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Scackleton Parish Council
Applicant: Mr Clive Birch
Location: Victoria Barn 2 St Georges Court Scackleton Helmsley North Yorkshire YO62 4NJ
Proposal: Erection of a single storey extension to form garden room
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

36.
Application No: 18/00298/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Malton Town Council
Applicant: Mr Daniel Bourke
Location: 3 Collingwood Gardens Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7YQ
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to rear
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

37.
Application No: 18/00311/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Norton Town Council
Applicant: Mrs Deborah Savage
Location: 18 Farm View Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9BF
Proposal: Replacement of integral garage door with window to allow conversion  of garage to 

additional domestic accommodation
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

38.
Application No: 18/00318/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Westow Parish Council
Applicant: Mr Richard Canham
Location: Greystones Main Street Westow Malton North Yorkshire YO60 7NE
Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

39.
Application No: 18/00325/FUL Decision:  Approval
Parish: Malton Town Council
Applicant: Messrs B Abbot and Walsh
Location: 6 And 8 York Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6AX
Proposal: Erection of a building forming one double garage for 6 York Road and one double 

garage for 8 York Road following demolition of existing garage/shed structures to 
the rear of the two properties

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

40.
Application No: 18/00329/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Settrington Parish Council
Applicant: Mr Martin
Location: St Georges Cottage  33 Beckside Settrington Malton YO17 8NP
Proposal: Erection of conservatory to the rear following demolition of existing conservatory
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Page 189



41.
Application No: 18/00330/LBC Decision:  Approval
Parish: Settrington Parish Council
Applicant: Mr Martin
Location: St Georges Cottage  33 Beckside Settrington Malton YO17 8NP
Proposal: Erection of conservatory to the rear following demolition of existing conservatory
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

42.
Application No: 18/00331/LBC Decision:  Approval
Parish: Pickering Town Council
Applicant: Martin Stebbing
Location: Spring View  Keld Head Pickering YO18 8LL
Proposal: Internal and external alterations to include replacement of rear bathroom window, 

installation of 1no. rooflight to rear elevation roofslope, replacement of existing 
concrete pointing, replacement of existing main roof truss and insulation of internal 
roof structure.

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

43.
Application No: 18/00341/HOUSE Decision:  Approval
Parish: Flaxton Parish Council
Applicant: Kate Dunham & Natalie Hewitt
Location: Chase Cottage  Main Street Flaxton Malton YO60 7RJ
Proposal: Erection of detached garage following demolition of existing garage (revised details 

to approval 16/02021/HOUSE dated 14.02.2017).
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Page 190


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by the Committee
	6 17/01450/FUL - North Yorkshire Highways Depot Manor Vale Lane Kirkbymoorside
	2 - Revised Plan 1
	3 - Revised Plan 2
	4 - Additional Information
	5 - Incoming Letter
	6 - Lead Local Flood Authority

	7 17/01517/MREM - Land Adjacent to Auburn Cottages Langton Road Norton
	2 - Revised Plan 1
	3 - Revised Plan 2
	4 - Revised Plan 3
	5 - Revised Plan 4
	6 - Revised Plan 5
	7 - Consultee Response 1

	8 18/00036/MFUL - Ellis Patents High Street Rillington
	2 - Site Location Plan 1
	3 - Site Location Plan 2
	4 - Existing floor plan
	5 - Proposed Floor Plan
	6 - Existing Plans
	7 - Proposed Elevation
	8 - Revised Plan
	9 - Design And Access Statement
	10 - Parish

	9 18/00202/MFUL - Beech Tree House South Holme Slingsby
	2 - Existing Plans
	3 - Plans
	4 - Revised Plan
	5 - Design And Access Statement

	10 18/00005/HOUSE - Moorlands High Street Cropton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Revised Site Layout Plan
	4 - Revised Plan
	5 - Parish 1
	6 - Parish 2

	11 18/00363/HOUSE - North Wing Firby Hall Village Streets Firby
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Proposed Plans
	4 - Plans
	5 - Design And Access Statement
	6 - Parish 1
	7 - Parish 2

	12 18/00314/LBC - North Wing Firby Hall Village Street Firby
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Proposed Plans
	4 - Plans
	5 - Design And Access Statement

	13 18/00122/FUL - Royal Oak Hotel 131 Eastgate Pickering
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Block Plans
	5 - Existing Floor Plans
	6 - Proposed Floor Plans 1
	7 - Proposed Floor Plans 2
	8 - Revised Floor Plan
	9 - Existing Elevation
	10 - Proposed Elevation 1
	11 - Proposed Elevation 2
	12 - Revised Elevations
	13 - Proposed Plans 1
	14 - Proposed Plans 2
	15 - Plans
	16 - Revised Plan
	17 - Design And Access Statement
	18 - Parish 1
	19 - Parish 2

	15 List of applications determined under delegated powers

